Public Document Pack

COUNCIL MEETING
SUMMONS
Members of Fareham Borough Council are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of
the Council to be held in the Council Chamber, on
THURSDAY, 21 OCTOBER 2021, commencing at 6.00 pm.

The Mayor: Councillor Pamela Bryant
The Deputy Mayor: Councillor Michael Ford, JP
Councillor Ian Bastable

Councillor Tiffany Harper

Councillor Susan Bayford

Councillor Pal Hayre

Councillor Fred Birkett

Councillor Connie Hockley

Councillor Joanne Bull

Councillor Leslie Keeble

Councillor Trevor Cartwright, MBE

Councillor Jean Kelly

Councillor Louise Clubley

Councillor Gerry Kelly

Councillor Malcolm Daniells

Councillor Kay Mandry

Councillor Peter Davies

Councillor Simon Martin

Councillor Tom Davies

Councillor Sarah Pankhurst

Councillor Steve Dugan

Councillor Roger Price, JP

Councillor Tina Ellis

Councillor Katrina Trott

Councillor Jack Englefield

Councillor Mrs Susan Walker

Councillor Geoff Fazackarley

Councillor Nick Walker

Councillor Jim Forrest

Councillor Seán Woodward

Councillor Nick Gregory

Page 1

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 16)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 29 July
2021.

3.

Mayor's Announcements

4.

Executive Leader's Announcements

5.

Executive Members' Announcements

6.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct.

7.

Presentation of Petitions
To receive any petitions presented by a member of the Council.
Note: any petition so presented will be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s
petition scheme.

8.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been given.

9.

Reports of the Executive
To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the
Executive. Minutes of the meetings of the Executive and a schedule of individual
Executive member decisions are appended.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 9 August 2021 of Executive (Pages 17 - 20)

(2)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 26 August 2021 of Executive (Pages 21 - 24)

(3)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 21 September 2021 of Executive (Pages 25 - 30)

(4)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 30 September 2021 of Executive (Pages 31 34)

(5)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 11 October 2021 of Executive (Pages 35 - 42)

(6)

Schedule of Executive Member and Officer Delegated Decisions (Pages 43 44)

10. Reports of Other Committees
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and to consider and answer
questions on any reports and recommendations made.

Page 2

(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 14 July 2021 of Planning Committee (Pages
45 - 54)

(2)

Minutes of meeting Friday, 23 July 2021 of Planning Committee (Pages 55 64)

(3)

Minutes of meeting Friday, 10 September 2021 of Planning Committee (Pages
65 - 70)

(4)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 15 September 2021 of Planning Committee
(Pages 71 - 80)

(5)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 27 September 2021 of Audit and Governance
Committee (Pages 81 - 84)

(6)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 28 September 2021 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee (Pages 85 - 88)

11. Reports of the Scrutiny Panels
To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the
meetings of the Scrutiny Panels.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 18 August 2021 of Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel (Pages 89 - 92)

(2)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 7 September 2021 of Daedalus Scrutiny Panel
(Pages 93 - 96)

(3)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 14 September 2021 of Planning and
Development Scrutiny Panel (Pages 97 - 100)

(4)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 16 September 2021 of Housing Scrutiny Panel
(Pages 101 - 104)

(5)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 29 September 2021 of Leisure and
Community Scrutiny Panel (Pages 105 - 108)

(6)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 5 October 2021 of Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel (Pages 109 - 112)

(7)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 6 October 2021 of Policy and Resources
Scrutiny Panel (Pages 113 - 118)

12. Questions under Standing Order 2.12
To answer questions pursuant to Standing Order 2.12 for this meeting.
13. Motions under Standing Order 2.6
Members will be informed, prior to the meeting, of any motion duly notified in
accordance with Standing Order 2.6 but received after print and dispatch of the
agenda.

Page 3

(1)

Notice of Motion dated 05 October 2021 received from Councillor R H Price,
JP
“Due to costs for the Council in removing Travellers and to protect the
Residents/Public from the issues of Travellers parking in the large car park at
Portchester Precinct.
I request that Height barriers be erected at the Entrance and Exit off of the
road from Jubilee Road and the Entrance/Exit off the road leading to Assheton
Court with immediate effect.”

(2)

Notice of Motion dated 11 October 2021 received from Councillor J Forrest
“This Council endorses the policies set out in the LGA publication Improving
Digital Citizenship: a practical guide for councillors
(www.local.gov.uk/publications), which encourages councillors to avoid “the
spread of unverified rumours, misinformation and disinformation”.
Acknowledges that a key factor in limiting misinformation is to make accurate
information as widely available as possible, by encouraging public
engagement in its business, and providing easy access to the fullest possible
record of its meetings.
Notes that the live streaming of meetings during the Covid lockdown was a
step forward in improving access to meetings, and provided a fuller record of
debate than is possible through Minutes.
Resolves to resume live streaming of meetings of the Council, Scrutiny Panels
and main committees as soon as possible, taking advantage of the current
review of Ways of Working to do so as cost-effectively as possible.”

14. Appointments to Outside Bodies
(1)

Hampshire 2050 Partnership
The Council is invited to appoint Councillor S D Martin as the Representative
to the Hampshire 2050 Partnership and Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE as the
Deputy.

15. Appointments to Committees
To make any changes in appointments to the seats on committees in accordance
with the wishes of political groups. Such appointments will take effect from 22
October 2021.

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
www.fareham.gov.uk

Page 4

13 October 2021

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Council
Date:

Thursday, 29 July 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Mrs P M Bryant
(Mayor)
M J Ford, JP
(Deputy Mayor)
Councillors:

I Bastable, Mrs S M Bayford, F Birkett, Miss J Bull,
T M Cartwright, MBE, Mrs L E Clubley, M R Daniells,
T Davies, Mrs T L Ellis, G Fazackarley, J S Forrest,
Miss T G Harper, Mrs P Hayre, Mrs C L A Hockley,
Mrs J Kelly, J G Kelly, Mrs K Mandry, S D Martin,
Ms S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP, Mrs K K Trott, N J Walker,
Mrs S M Walker and S D T Woodward

Page 7

Council

1.

29 July 2021

PRAYERS
The meeting was opened with prayers led by the Deputy Mayor.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Davies, S Dugan, J M
Englefield, N Gregory and L Keeble.

3.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Mayor be authorised to sign as a correct record the
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 10 June 2021.

4.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor announced that she hoped that members had enjoyed coming into
the parlour again this evening after such a long period of absence.
Since the last Council meeting, the Mayor announced that she and the
Mayoress have had the privilege of carrying out a number of engagements
including the reopening of the Portchester post office, presenting certificates to
volunteers at the community hospital, raising the flag with the Captain of
Collingwood to commemorate Armed Forces week and, on a hot but well
organised day, attending One Community’s Showcase event where the Mayor
and Mayoress were able to see more than 70 participating charities.
The Mayor announced that she also had the pleasure of judging the first
Children’s Business Fair in West Street. Some of the young entrepreneurs
showed great imagination and a real sense of business and most of them were
just 12 or 13 years of age.
The Mayor also announced what a treat it had been to be able to open Abbey
Meadows and stated what a credit it is to the officers who planned the site.
Members who have not yet visited the site were encouraged to do so as it is a
wonderful addition to the play areas and other sites around the Borough.
There is a good car park, lovely walks around the meadows and the site is dog
friendly.
The Mayor announced that, at the Leader’s suggestion, along with several
other Members she visited Fareham railway station at 11pm one evening to
welcome back Mike Homer who was returning from his travels by train, visiting
100 Royal British Legion branches in 100 hours. This was a fantastic
achievement for this gentleman in his wheelchair and the Mayor was very
proud to see him come back. Mike was raising funds for the Poppy Appeal as
he was unable to raise money last year. The Mayor was sure that other
Members would agree with her that whilst waiting for Mike’s train, there was
Page 8

Council

29 July 2021

some memorable entertainment from a lively crew up on the station as the
England football team had just won their semi-final of Euro 2020!
Since then, the Mayor and Mayoress have opened the new Rowan’s shop in
Park Gate and last week had a great charity evening at Antonio’s restaurant,
raising £1,000 for the Rowan’s Hospice. Antonio has kindly offered another
charity evening, in aid of the Fareport Talking News, on Wednesday 22
September. The event is already getting booked up and Members were
encouraged to book sooner rather than later if they wished to attend.
5.

MAYOR'S CADET PRESENTATION
The Mayor announced that she had been due to present a certificate to the
Mayors’ Cadet to mark the end of her service but unfortunately, due to work
commitments, the Mayor’s Cadet was unable to attend and therefore
alternative arrangements will be made.

6.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader announced that he was pleased to advise Members at
the July meeting of the Executive, that the level of financial support from the
Government during the pandemic was higher than expected when we set the
emergency budget last Summer. This is good news because it meant that we
did not have to tap into General Fund reserves to offset the severe impact of
COVID-19 on Council finances in 2020/21. Government funding paid for the
extraordinary work that our officers did in responding to the pandemic, helping
the clinically vulnerable, supporting businesses with grants and keeping our
vital services running. The Leader stated that this does not, however, address
the underlying gap in the medium-term finances of well over £1m, which was
identified before the pandemic, and still exists.
The Executive Leader went on to say that there has been some natural
disquiet about the introduction of charges for the garden waste service and
coastal parking, and these were not decisions taken lightly, but they are
necessary to meet the on-going financial pressures that will be placed on the
Council for several years to come. It is important to remember that these are
discretionary services and it is right that the costs are borne by those who
choose to use the service rather than all council taxpayers. The Council has
been careful to set prices at a sensible level for customers but also allow us to
continue delivering and investing in our many discretionary services. This is
especially important for areas such as Streetscene where we will spend £2.4m
on new vehicles alone, and for car parking maintenance and improvements,
which is estimated to be £6.2m over the next 5 years.

7.

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection made the following
announcements:
QA Hospital
Page 9

Council

29 July 2021

The new £58m Emergency Department at QA has now received Outline
Planning Permission from Portsmouth City Council. It will be built on the
existing multi-storey staff car park which will be demolished and replaced with
a new three-level building with blue light vehicle access together with 216
parking spaces under the building. The new design will improve waiting times
and will include radiology teams for Scans (including CT) and tests. It will also
double the resuscitation capacity. Construction work will start in the Autumn of
next year.
Also, at the same time, there will be built a new 72-bed ward on the north of
the site and a new four-storey car park.
The Executive Member will keep Council informed of progress.
CCG meeting
On Tuesday 27 July, The Chief Executive Officer, the Director of Leisure and
Community and the Executive Member met with key Clinical Commissioning
Group managers and Primary Care Network Clinical Lead’s for the Borough of
Fareham. The meeting was held at the request of the CCG, to discuss how
we might work better together in terms of communicating key messages to our
residents.
It was a positive meeting and will hopefully lead to a more constructive
arrangement of partnership working going forward. Further meetings are to be
held where priorities, joint actions and outcomes will be discussed and
mobilised.
The Executive Member will keep the Council informed of progress.
Planning and Development
CAT Meetings
The Executive Member announced that the Council has now held a series of
CAT meetings and exhibitions across the Borough in relation to the Revised
Publication Local Plan consultation which will end tomorrow (Friday 30 th July).
Turnout was lower than at previous consultations which may be a reflection of
ongoing concerns about the Covid-19 pandemic, despite the events being run
in a socially distanced manner. The Council’s Communications and Planning
Strategy teams were available for 2.5 hours on each of five afternoons to
answer any questions that attendees had.
Over fifty people attended the exhibitions before the CAT meetings and
approximately ninety people attending the CAT meetings themselves.
Comments ranged from queries on particular sites, questions on how to
respond to the consultation and comments on other planning matters.
The virtual exhibition has proved to be popular during this consultation, as it
was during the previous consultation where it was used to complement our
normal consultation methods during the Covid-19 pandemic.
Over the
consultation period, the virtual exhibition has received over 1,200 visits,
generating over 2,500 visits to the Local Plan pages of our website.
Page 10

Council

29 July 2021

Following the close of the consultation tomorrow, Officers will read each
response and prepare a summary of the main issues raised to accompany the
submission of the Local Plan to the Planning Inspectorate. In line with our
Local Development Scheme, submission is proposed for this autumn and
through future announcements, The Executive member confirmed that he will
keep Council informed as we reach this important stage in the preparation of
our new Local Plan.
Newgate Lane Appeal Decision
We were informed by the Planning Inspector yesterday that the Council has
unfortunately lost the planning appeal in relation to land east of Newgate Lane
east. This was a co-joined appeal for outline applications in both Fareham and
Gosport Borough Council’s administrative areas, as the access to the site for
99 homes would lie in Gosport.
The Inspector concluded that despite issues of strategic gap, best and most
versatile land and conflict with our adopted plan development strategy, in light
of our persistent lack of five-year supply, outline permission for 99 homes was
granted.
The Council’s Publication Local Plan does not include this site, nor the fields to
the north which were previously included in earlier Local Plan consultations as
the site ‘HA2 Land east of Newgate Lane’. Reasons for excluding this site
from the more advanced stages of the plan weigh heavily on the conflict with
the strategic gap policy and the most recent technical evidence which finds
that this area of the borough cannot accept development in a way that
complies with our policy.
This view was upheld by the Inspector who said that when taking the Fareham
-Stubbington Strategic gap as a whole this site’s size is relatively modest but
there would be harm to the Strategic gap by way of a reduction in the physical
and visual separation between Peel Common and Bridgemary.
Despite the outcome, the Inspector attributed significant weight to the conflict
with the Strategic Gap policy. Therefore, the development strategy in the
Publication Plan, which is currently out to consultation, to exclude
development in this area requires no amendment and the Council will continue
to defend this part of the Strategic Gap from harmful speculative
developments.
This disappointing news is tempered by a more positive position with regards
to affordable housing provision in the Borough as a result of the appeal
decision.
The successful Appeal was made by Bargate Homes who are owned by Vivid
Homes, a large registered provider of affordable housing. It is the appellant’s
intention to develop the site as a 100% affordable housing scheme although
as only 40% can be secured as affordable housing via the Planning
Obligations, there can be no guarantee that more than 40% will be delivered
as part of the development.

Page 11

Council

29 July 2021

Notwithstanding the Appellant’s stated intention to deliver 100% affordable
housing on the site, there is no policy requirement to provide more than 40%
affordable housing and doing so would apparently cause the Appellant
difficulties in securing certain types of funding. At the hearing the Council was
clear that the Inspector should only give the provision of affordable housing at
the site weight in the planning balance proportionate to the 40% provision
secured in the section 106. In effect the Council reminded the Inspector that
he ought not to give the provision of 100% affordable housing more weight
than it should bearing in mind only 40% was legally guaranteed.
The Appellant and the Council did agree to an additional planning condition at
the request of Officers which the Inspector has agreed to impose which
provides some control over the additional affordable housing to be provided.
This condition does not require a higher level of affordable housing provision
but means that, in the event more than 40% is provided the Council will be
able to ensure a suitable community lettings plan is followed.
Housing
Rose Court Development
The Executive Member put forward his thanks to the Mayor for officially
opening the Rose Court development on Highlands Road. The development
has delivered 18 social housing units within the Borough which are very much
needed. The Executive Member stated that he looks forward to reporting on
further Council built developments in the future.
8.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor S D T Woodward declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of
item 16 on the agenda as he is the Chairman of the Harbour Board for the
River Hamble.
Councillor M J Ford, JP declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of item 16
on the agenda as he is a member of the Harbour Board for the River Hamble.
The Mayor declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of item 16 as she is
also a member of the Harbour Board for the River Hamble

9.

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS
There were no petitions presented at this meeting.

10.

DEPUTATIONS
A written deputation was received from Mr Gareth Jones in respect of the
Council’s Revenue budget shortfall. A copy of the written statement is
attached to these minutes as Appendix A.

Page 12

Council

11.

29 July 2021

REPORTS OF THE EXECUTIVE
(1)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 5 July 2021 of Executive

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on Monday
05 July 2021 be received.
(2)

Schedule of Executive Member and Officer Delegated Decisions

RESOLVED that the Schedule of Individual Executive Member and Officer
Delegated Decisions be received.
(3)

Schedule of Urgency Provisions

RESOLVED that the Schedule of Urgency Provisions be received.
12.

REPORTS OF OTHER COMMITTEES
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 26 May 2021 of Planning Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held
on Wednesday 26 May 2021 be received.
(2)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 16 June 2021 of Planning Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held
on Wednesday 16 June 2021 be received.
(3)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 12 July 2021 of Audit and Governance
Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance
Committee meeting held on Monday 12 July 2021 be received.
(4)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 20 July 2021 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee held on Tuesday 20 July 2021 be received.
13.

REPORTS OF THE SCRUTINY PANELS
(1)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 27 May 2021 of Climate Change Scrutiny
Panel

It was noted under this item that the minutes of the meeting of the Climate
Change Scrutiny Panel held on Thursday 27 May 2021 were received by
Council at the meeting held on 10 June 2021.
(2)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 1 June 2021 of Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

Page 13

Council

29 July 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
meeting held on Tuesday 01 June 2021 be received.
(3)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 8 July 2021 of Housing Scrutiny Panel

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Housing Scrutiny Panel
held on 08 July 2021 be received.
(4)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 13 July 2021 of Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel held on Tuesday 13 July 2021 be received.
(5)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 July 2021 of Streetscene Scrutiny
Panel

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Streetscene Scrutiny Panel
held on Thursday 15 July 2021 be received.
(6)

Minutes of the meeting of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel held
on Monday 28 June 2021

The minutes of the meeting of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel held
on Monday 28 June 2021 were tabled at the meeting and are attached to
these minutes as Appendix B.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel
meeting held on Monday 28 June 2021 be received.

(7)

Minutes of the meeting of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel held on
Thursday 24 June 2021

The minutes of the meeting of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel held on Thursday
24 June 2021 were tabled at the meeting and are attached to these minutes
as Appendix C.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel
held on Thursday 24 June 2021 be received.
14.

QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 2.12
There were no questions submitted at this meeting.

15.

MOTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 2.6
There were no motions submitted at this meeting.

Page 14

Council

16.

29 July 2021

BOUNDARY
COMMISSION
FOR
ENGLAND
PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES- 2023 REVIEW

REVIEW

OF

Councillor S D T Woodward declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as
he is the Chairman of the Harbour Board for the River Hamble.
Councillor M J Ford, JP declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as he is
a member of the Harbour Board for the River Hamble.
The Mayor declared a non-pecuniary interest on this item as she is also a
member of the Harbour Board for the River Hamble
Following on from the recommendations made by the Licensing and
Regulatory Affairs Committee made at its meeting on 20 July 2021, an
updated version of Appendix B to the report was tabled at the meeting in
respect of paragraphs 7, 11, 15 and 18. This document is attached to these
minutes as Appendix D.
During a debate on this item an amendment was proposed by Councillor R H
Price, JP and seconded by Councillor J S Forrest that the wording at
paragraph 7 of the updates to Appendix B be amended to read:
“Fareham is shaped by the trunk of the River Hamble to the west and the
Coastal inlet of Paulsgrove Lake to the east. The topographical map below
illustrates how the chalk ridge of Portsdown Hill creates a natural barrier.”
On being put to the vote, the amendment was agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED that the Council:
(a) approves the draft consultation response as set out in Appendix B to
the report, including the amendments recommended by the Licensing
and Regulatory Affairs Committee as set out from paragraph 21 of the
report, subject to:
(i) the amendments to Appendix B to the report as outlined in the
tabled item; and
(ii) the revised wording to paragraph 7 of Appendix B to the report
as outlined above
(b) agrees that, subject to the amendments in (a) above, the response is
formally submitted to the Boundary Commission for England.
17.

CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEETING DATES
RESOLVED that the Council notes that:
(a) the date of the Audit and Governance Committee meeting scheduled to
take place on 26 July 2021 was moved and took place on 12 July 2021;
and

Page 15

Council

29 July 2021
(b) the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee
scheduled to take place on 08 June 2021 was cancelled.

18.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
Updates to the Independent Group appointments were made as follows:
Councillor L Keeble to be appointed to the Planning and Development Scrutiny
Panel, the Streetscene Scrutiny Panel and the Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee with Councillor G Fazackarley as the deputy on all.
Councillor L Keeble to be appointed as the group spokesman for the Planning
and Development portfolio and the Streetscene portfolio.
RESOLVED that the Council notes the revised appointments made by the
Independent Group.

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.55 pm).

Page 16

Agenda Item 9(1)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 9 August 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
I Bastable, Streetscene
F Birkett, Housing
S D Martin, Planning and Development
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:

Page 17

Executive

1.

9 August 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence given for this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on Monday
05 July 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Executive Leader announcements.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
There were no references from other Committees made at this meeting.

8.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION
(1)

Draft Agreement with English Heritage regarding charging at the
Council's Portchester Castle car parks

The Executive Leader announced that as a result of the call-in of the Individual
Executive Member Decision No: 2291 – Portchester Car Parks Traffic
Regulation Order - consideration of consultation response, this item would be
deferred to the 26 August 2021.
9.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Welborne Garden Village Housing Infrastructure Grant

RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) approves the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding with Homes
England to help secure the £42m Housing Investment Grant for
Welborne Garden Village as attached at the Confidential Appendix A to
this report;

Page 18

Executive

9 August 2021

(b) delegates authority to complete the Memorandum of Understanding to
the Director of Planning and Regeneration, following consultation with
the Council’s s151 Officer and the Executive Leader of the Council; and
(c) requests that the Head of Development Management incorporates
these provisions in the legal agreement for Welborne pursuant to
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
(The meeting started at 6.02 pm
and ended at 6.15 pm).

Page 19

Agenda Item 9(2)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Thursday, 26 August 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
F Birkett, Housing
S D Martin, Planning and Development
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:
R H Price, JP, for item 8(1)

Page 21

Executive

1.

26 August 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor I J Bastable.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on Monday
09 August 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Executive Leader announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
Deputations were received from Mr Neil Young and from Mrs Sally Young,
representing St Mary’s Church, in respect of item 8(1) – Draft agreement with
English Heritage regarding charging at the Council’s Portchester Castle car
parks.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
There were no references from other Committees.

8.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION
(1)

Draft agreement with English Heritage regarding charging at the
Council's Portchester Castle car parks

Updated confidential Appendices A and B to the report were tabled at the
meeting for consideration in respect of this item, containing updated
information to the draft agreement proposals with English Heritage.
Deputations were received in respect of this item from Mr Neil Young and Mrs
Sally Young.
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed
the Executive on this item. As Councillor Price wished to comment on
information contained in the confidential Appendices, it was proposed and
agreed that the meeting move into private session.
RESOLVED that the public and representatives of the press be temporarily
excluded from the meeting on the grounds that the matters to be dealt with

Page 22

Executive

26 August 2021

involve the likely disclosure of exempt information. As defined in Paragraph 3
of Part 1 Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
At the conclusion of the discussion on the confidential Appendices, the
meeting moved back into open session.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) approves the agreement with English Heritage, as detailed in the
updated confidential Appendix B to the report, to allow hourly charging
and season ticket use in the two Portchester Castle car parks; and
(b) delegates authority to the Director of Leisure and Community, following
consultation with the Executive Member for Health and Public
Protection, to agree any minor amendments to the agreement.
(The meeting started at 4.00 pm
and ended at 4.59 pm).

Page 23

Agenda Item 9(3)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 21 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
I Bastable, Streetscene
S D Martin, Planning and Development
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:
R H Price, JP, for items 10(1) & 10(3)
Mrs K K Trott, for item 10(1)

Page 25

Executive

1.

21 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor F Birkett.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 26
August 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Executive Leader announcements.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
Daedalus Scrutiny Panel – 07 September 2021
Minute 9 – Solent Airport Operator Contract
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the Solent Airport Operator Contract.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends that the Executive approve the report
when it considers it at its meeting on 21 September 2021.
This item was considered at item 12(1) on the agenda.
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel – 14 September 2021
Minute 7 – Council Trees Service Review
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the Council’s Tree Service Review. The report provided an opportunity for
the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel to scrutinise the report prior to
the Executive meeting on the 21 September 2021.
The Head of Development Management presented the report highlighting the
key areas of the review and how these in turn have influenced the
recommendations put to the Executive for decision. The Panel expressed their
Page 26

Executive

21 September 2021

support for the proposals and asked questions for clarification throughout the
discussions.
Members of the Panel provided details of possible funding opportunities for
tree planting and discussed the importance of tapping into as much available
funding as possible. Officers explained that a lot of work has already been
carried out to investigate funding opportunities for tree. It is expected that this
work will increase once the proposals from the review have been agreed.
Members also enquired about the link to the proposed revisions to Council’s
Tree Planting programme and the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan,
asking for reassurance that these changes wouldn’t have a detrimental impact
on the number of trees planted each year. Officers explained that with a reorganisation of the proactive tree planting towards strategic sites it was not
anticipated that there would be an overall reduction in the number of trees
planted and that this will be monitored by officers.
Members enquired as to which trees types capture the most carbon and if
consideration could be given to this as part of the Council’s Tree Planting
programme. Officers agreed to investigate this matter and notify Members of
the Panel accordingly.
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel: (a) notes the contents of the Executive report at Appendix 1; and
(b) recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 21 September 2021,
that it endorses the recommendations as set out in Appendix 1.
This item was considered at item 9(1) on the agenda.
8.

HOUSING
(1)

External Redecoration Contract (ED0054) - Award of Tender

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to award a contract to the contractor
achieving the highest scoring tender based on quality and cost as detailed in
the confidential Appendix A to the report.
9.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
(1)

Council Tree Service Review

The comments of the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel were taken
into account when considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive approves:
(a) the new approach to Council-owned trees, which includes:



Stopping good neighbour works.
Changes to Tree Planting.
Page 27

Executive

21 September 2021






Changes to the Inspection frequency of Council Managed trees.
Responsibility for low height tree works being brough in house.
Reduction of other planned tree works.
Individual proposals for funding of Strategic Planning Sites being
brought to future Executive meetings for consideration.
Engagement with local communities and the building up of a
volunteer resource.

(b) a full review of the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Document for the Borough of Fareham, excluding Welborne (SPD) be
conducted; and
That the Executive notes:
(c) that an increased maintenance charge will be sought where land is
being adopted which contains trees which the Council will need to
actively manage upon adoption, of £500 per tree.
10.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Disposal of Trinity Street Public Conveniences

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP and
Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the disposal of the Trinity Street
Public Conveniences on the terms and conditions as detailed in the
Confidential Appendix A to the report.
(2)

Citizen of Honour Award - Special Group Achievement Category

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to present Acts of Kindness (Solent)
with a Citizen of Honour Special Group Achievement Award in recognition of
its outstanding contribution and support of the local community and the
residents of the Borough of Fareham.
(3)

Citizen of Honour Award Scheme - Special Achievement Category

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to present Declan Brooks with a Citizen
of Honour Special Achievement Award in recognition of winning a bronze
medal in the men’s BMX Freestyle Cycling at the Tokyo 2020 Summer
Olympic Games.
(4)

Covid Heroes Award Nominations

RESOLVED that the Executives agrees that the following nominees are
selected as winners of their categories and will be recognised with an award
as COVID Heroes for 2021:
From the nominations detailed in the confidential Appendix 1 to the report at
Page 71 – nominees 6, 8 and 9
Page 28

Executive

21 September 2021

Page 72/73 – nominees 1 and 11
Page 75 – nominees 1 and 5
Page 76 – nominees 1, 7 and 8
11.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED that the public and representatives of the press be excluded from
the meeting on the grounds that the matters to be dealt with at item 12(1) on
the agenda would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.

12.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Solent Airport Operator Contract

The comments of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in
considering this item.
RESOLVED that a decision was made by the Executive in respect of this item.
(The meeting started at 6.01 pm
and ended at 6.40 pm).

Page 29

Agenda Item 9(4)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Thursday, 30 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
I Bastable, Streetscene
F Birkett, Housing
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:

Page 31

Executive

1.

30 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor S D Martin.

2.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on Tuesday 21 September
2021 were tabled at the meeting for consideration.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 21
September 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Executive Leader announcements.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
Leisure & Community Scrutiny Panel – 29 September 2021
Item 6 – Restarting of the remodelling of Fareham Live project
The Panel received a report from the Director of Leisure and Community which
provided an opportunity for Members to pre-scrutinise the Executive report on
restarting the remodelling of the Fareham Live Project.
RESOLVED that the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel:a) notes the contents of the Executive report at Appendix 1; and
b) passes the following comments to the Executive for consideration at
their meeting on the 30 September 2021. Members of the Leisure and
Community Scrutiny Panel agreed that: i) the Fareham Live project is a key part of the regeneration of
Fareham Town Centre and without support would have a
detrimental effect on the Council’s Town Centre Vision;

Page 32

Executive

30 September 2021
ii) the Panel recognise the importance of the venue for many
community organisations, and the need for such a facility to serve
the existing and growing population in the Borough;
iii) the risk profile for the project has changed but on balance are
minded to support the project at this time; and
iv) Officers and Members of the Ferneham Hall Working Group be
thanked for their work to move the project forward, particularly
during these challenging times.

This item was considered at item 8(1) on the agenda.
8.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY
(1)

Restarting the remodelling of the Fareham Live Project

The comments of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel were taken into
account in considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) approves the recommencement of work on the Fareham Live project;
(b) approves the updated contractual principles and programme with B H
Live;
(c) approves the updated budget of £13.35m for construction works; and
(d) notes the potential cost saving opportunities presented and agrees to
remain with the original vision.
(The meeting started at 5.00 pm
and ended at 5.12 pm).

Page 33

Agenda Item 9(5)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 11 October 2021

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
F Birkett, Housing
S D Martin, Planning and Development
Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community
Also in attendance:
Mrs K K Trott, for item 8(2)
Mrs C L A Hockley, for item item 9(1)
R H Price, JP, for items 9(1), 10(2) & 10(3)
J S Forrest, for item 10(2)

Page 35

Executive

1.

11 October 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor I J Bastable.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 30 September
2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Executive Leader noted that this was the first meeting of the Executive
held in the Collingwood Room marking a return to the arrangements for formal
meetings before the Covid pandemic, without live streaming or broadcasting of
the meeting. The Executive Leader confirmed that whilst the legal requirement
for formal meetings to be at least audio broadcast had ended, he has asked
the Head of Democratic Services to look into the possibility of live streaming
meetings from the Collingwood Room in the future. This may be limited to
audio only if set up costs and resource costs are high but the Executive
Leader highlighted the ability of members of the public to attend meetings
without needing to travel to the Civic Offices.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

7.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
Housing Scrutiny Panel – 16 September 2021
Minute 7 - Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
The Panel considered a report by the Head of Housing and Benefits which
presented the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy for Members’
consideration and comment.
Following discussion and review of the draft policy, members commented that
it had been a very good idea to commission the independent review of
homelessness services provided by the Council and commended the Housing
officers for the excellent service provided to residents.
The Panel was fully supportive of the draft Strategy and had no suggested
amendments to make.

Page 36

Executive

11 October 2021

Members requested that, as this will be a long term, rolling strategy, an annual
review of progress be added to the scrutiny priorities for the Panel.
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel agrees that:
(a) the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy be
recommended to the Executive for approval to commence a period of
public consultation; and
(b) once approved, an annual review of the Strategy be added to the
scrutiny priorities for the Panel.
This item was considered at 8(2) on the agenda
Streetscene Scrutiny Panel – 15 July 2021
Minute 9 – Floral Displays and in Bloom Arrangements
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley addressed the
Panel on this item.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor I J Bastable, the Executive
Member for Streetscene, addressed the Panel on this item.
The Panel considered a report by the Head of Streetscene and a presentation
by the Public Spaces Operations Manager which outlined the proposals for the
future provision of the Council’s floral displays and In Bloom Arrangements.
The Panel was very supportive of the development of more sustainable
planting that has taken place across the Borough and complimented Officers
on making the Borough look so attractive.
Members requested that floral towers be provided in Portchester and
Stubbington district centres as well as in the Town Centre in order to increase
the attractiveness of using district centres as shopping destinations. It was
suggested that with help from community volunteers in maintaining the towers,
only a capital cost would be needed.
Whilst the Panel was very supportive of the future provision of sustainable
floral displays, there was considerable concern for the potential loss of
valuable community involvement that may result from the proposed changes to
Fareham in Bloom Arrangements. Reassurance was given by Officers that
community volunteering and involvement will be retained and will continue to
be part of any plans going forward.
The Head of Streetscene and the Public Spaces Operations Manager were
thanked for providing an interesting report and presentation.
RESOLVED that the Streetscene Scrutiny Panel notes the content of the
report.
This item was considered at item 9(1) on the agenda
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel – 6th October 2021
Page 37

Executive

11 October 2021

Minute 8 – The Council’s Approach to the Pandemic – A Review
The Panel considered a report by the Chief Executive Officer on a review of
the Council’s approach to the Pandemic.
The Chief Executive Officer referred members to page 76 of the agenda pack
and to recommendation C which is to be amended to read, “The proposal that
future deputations can also be made in writing, or by a video or audio clip, be
approved, subject to the separate deputation scheme for the Planning
Committee being kept under review.”
The Panel requested that their praise for the entire workforce for their
continued commitment to work throughout the Pandemic over past 18 months,
which has put significant pressure on all Council services, be passed on to all
staff. The Panel recognises that the Council’s success in continuing all
services throughout the Pandemic was due to all employees rising to the
challenges that were brought about as a result of the Pandemic.
The Chief Executive Officer confirmed that he would pass on the Panel’s
comments to the workforce and agreed with the Panel’s comments. He also
explained that part of the success for the Council to be able to adapt so
quickly to the Pandemic was due to having a majority directly employed
workforce, which allowed the Council to easily redeploy staff to other services
areas where needed to deal with pressure demands on those more
significantly impacted service areas.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 11
October 2021:
(i) That the proposed amendment to recommendation (c) of the report be
approved; and
(ii) The Panel’s comments above are noted.
This item was considered at 10(3) on the agenda
Minute 9 – Proposal for a new way of working
The Panel considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer on a
proposal for a new way of working.
The Chairman asked why recruitment was becoming more difficult, and
whether this was specific to the Council, or whether other authorities were also
experiencing the same issues. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer confirmed
that this was an issue for Local Authorities in general and difficulties were
being experienced across a broader range of roles, partly due to ongoing
competition from the private sector. This is one of the reasons why the Council
was taking steps to ensure it was an attractive employer.
Councillor Walker expressed concern that employing staff from outside of the
local area could lead to staff making decisions with limited knowledge of the
Council and needs of the community. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer
confirmed this would be unlikely, especially for posts where knowledge of the
Page 38

Executive

11 October 2021

borough was a necessity to carry out a role effectively, as well as recognising
the Council’s expectation that all staff will continue to attend the civic offices
for work regularly.
A question was asked of the Chief Executive Officer if this would require a
change of contract for all current staff. He confirmed that this would not be
necessary as it is a voluntary offer to staff, and they recognise that not all staff
will want to adopt this new way of working. He also explained to the Panel that
this would not apply to the entire workforce as there is a large proportion of
staff whose job could not be undertaken from home, for example grounds
maintenance staff and waste and recycling collection staff.
Councillor Bull enquired as to whether this is any thought to adopting a more
flexible working hours to better suit the public needs with more staff being
available at different times whilst working from home. The Deputy Chief
Executive Officer confirmed this is something that there is an opportunity for,
and that engagement with the public to understand their preferred way of
dealing with the Council would need to be undertaken first.
Councillor Daniells expressed his support for the proposals and noted that
many places of work are currently looking into the feasibility of being able to
offer this to employees. He acknowledged that the Council has taken the
welfare of its employee into consideration when working at home but
commented that employees can also feel isolated when working in an empty
office and that this needs to considered as well. He also stressed the
importance of maintaining a team focus and suggested that team days could
be arranged to ensure that staff maintain the team ethos.
Councillor Kelly acknowledged that life is dynamic and ever evolving and that
the Council is not immune to that. He enquired as to whether the Council
Offices were still fit for purpose. The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that
the viability of the offices has been considered and it was determined that for
now the building will remain the central hub for the Council’s operations. He
explained that this was reflected in the feedback from the staff consultation
exercise. He also stressed that it is important to retain a centre point for local
democracy and recognised the role the Council has to play as a large
employer in the town centre, for the local economy.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 11
October 2021: (i) That it notes the Panel’s comments above; and
(ii) Approves the recommendations as set out in the report.
This item was considered at 10(2) on the agenda
8.

HOUSING
(1)

Local Authority Delivery Phase 2 (LAD2) Funding scheme for energy
efficiency measures to Council homes

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees:

Page 39

Executive

11 October 2021

(a) that entering into a contract for the works which facilitate the use of
LAD2 funding be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive Officer; and
(b) the funding mechanisms to meet the Council’s contribution towards the
costs of the works.
(2)

Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy - Consultation

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
The comments of the Housing Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in
considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that:
(a) the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, as provided in
Appendix A to the report, and accompanying Delivery Plan, as provided
in Appendix B to the report, are published for an eight-week period of
public consultation; and
(b) the Deputy Chief Executive Officer, following consultation with the
Executive Member for Housing is authorised to make any necessary
minor amendments to the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy and accompanying Delivery Plan, prior to publication, provided
these do not change the overall direction or emphasis.
9.

STREETSCENE
(1)

Sustainable In-Bloom and Floral Displays

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillors Mrs C L A Hockley and R
H Price, JP addressed the Executive on this item.
The comments of the Streetscene Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in
considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees the proposals set out in paragraphs 45
to 53 in the report, to help deliver the Council’s Climate Change objectives and
increase biodiversity in the Borough, subject to an action plan being developed
to provide further details on each proposal, to be reviewed by the relevant
Scrutiny Panel.
10.

POLICY AND RESOURCES
(1)

Agency Staff Recruitment

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to award the contract for the Council’s
Preferred Supplier List for agency services on our agreed terms to the Agency
Worker Suppliers set out in the confidential Appendix A to the report as the
Agency Worker Suppliers are deemed to be the most suitable to cover the
breadth of skills and role requirements within the Council.
(2)

Proposal for a new way of working
Page 40

Executive

11 October 2021

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillors J S Forrest and R H
Price, JP addressed the Executive on this item.
The comments of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel were taken into
account in considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees the vision for the new way of working.
(3)

The Council's Approach to the Pandemic - A Review

The Executive Leader brought this item forward on the agenda to be
considered before item 10(2).
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed
the Executive on this item.
The comments of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel were taken into
account in considering this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that:
(a) the following reviews are undertaken and presented to the Executive for
decision:








future ICT provision for elected Members;
establishing clear protocols on virtual briefing meetings;
new ways of working for office-based employees including more
flexible home working arrangements and the future requirements
of office accommodation and ICT;
the future of the cash office
the Council’s approach to seasonal planting in the light of the
lessons learned from the pandemic period
future parking need in Fareham Town Centre; and
service level agreements with One Community and Fareham
CAB to reflect the lessons learnt from responding to the
pandemic.

(b) an Economic Development Strategy for the Borough be produced;
(c) the proposal that future deputations can also be made in writing, or by a
video or audio clip, be approved, subject to the separate deputation
scheme for the Planning Committee being kept under review; and
(d) thanks be given for exemplary work and support shown for Fareham
residents by all officers during the pandemic.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.57 pm).

Page 41

Agenda Item 9(6)


SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER
& OFFICER DELEGATED
DECISIONS
The following decisions have been made by individual Executive Members since those
reported at the meeting of Council on 29 July 2021:

Health & Public Protection - 28 July 2021

Decision 2021/22 - 2291

Portchester Car Parks Traffic Regulation Order - consideration of consultation
responses
RESOLVED that, having considered the representations made, the Executive Member for
Health and Public Protection agrees to adopt the updated Off-Street Parking Places
(Amendment 4) Order found at Appendix A to the report.

Leisure & Community – 20 August 2021

Decision 2021/22 - 2293

Community Funding Application – Abshot Community Association

RESOLVED that:
(a) the application for £15,000 from Fareham Borough Council’s Community Fund
submitted by Abshot Community Association, towards their project to replace the
flooring of the Main Hall of Abshot Community Centre, be approved; and
(b) the award be subject to the monitoring of the project by Council Officers upon
completion and no more than 2 months from commencement of the project, to
ensure that the flooring has been installed to a suitable standard for a community
facility.

Page 43

Agenda Item 10(1)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 14 July 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

N J Walker (Chairman)

Councillor

I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Miss J Bull, T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies, M J Ford, JP,
Mrs C L A Hockley, R H Price, JP and S Dugan (deputising for F
Birkett)

Also
Present:

Page 45

Planning Committee

1.

14 July 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor F Birkett.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on 26
May 2021 and 16 June 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokespe
rson
representi
ng
the
persons
listed

Subject

Supporting
or
Opposing
the
Application

Item
No/
Application
No/Page No

Dep
Type

LAND AT BEACON
BOTTOM WEST PARK
GATE – RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT OF 29
DWELLINGS,
ASSOCIATED
PARKING,
LANDSCAPING AND
MEANS OF ACCESS
FROM BEACON
BOTTOM FOLLOWING
REMOVAL/REDUCTION
OF FRONTAGE
HEDGEROW

Supporting

6 (1)
P/18/1258/FP
Pg 17

In
Person

ZONE 1 –
2.30pm

Ms K
Richards

ZONE 2 –
2.30pm

Page 46

Planning Committee

14 July 2021
THE OLD MILL LOWER
QUAY FAREHAM PO16
0RA – CHANGE OF USE
OF PART OF GROUND
FLOOR UNIT FROM SUI
GENERIS USE TO
COFFEE BAR (CLASS
E)

Ms K
Wainwright

Supporting

6 (5)
P/21/0736/CU
Pg 110

ZONE 3 –
2.30pm
6.

PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS

MATTERS

The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the development control matters, including information regarding new
appeals and decisions.
(1)

P/18/1258/FP - LAND AT BEACON BOTTOM WEST PARK GATE

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Committee Clerk read out a statement on behalf of Councillor S Martin,
Ward Councillor.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Recommendation
The recommendation at paragraph 9.1 of the Officer report incorrectly advises
Members to “Grant Outline Planning Permission”. Since the application is
presented in full and not outline form, the recommendation is hereby amended
to recommend that Members “Grant Planning Permission” subject to the
matters detailed in the remainder of that paragraph and the amended
conditions set out below in this update.
Car Ports and garages
The applicant has confirmed that plots 14, 15, 16 and 17 will have a single
plus garage whilst plots 11 and 18 will have a single garage. A carport will be
provided for plots 22 and 23. Officers are satisfied that this proposal would still
ensure the proposal provides adequate parking provision to serve the
development and the scheme complies with the Council’s adopted Residential
Car & Cycle Parking Standards SPD.
Condition 2 of the recommendation at paragraph 9.1 of the Officer report is
amended as follows to include additional approves plans relating to the car
ports and garages and to remove a plan previously included in error
(18.105.24C_HT Jh_Floor Plans and Elevations):
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following
drawings and documents:
Page 47

In
Person

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
m)
n)
o)
p)
q)
r)
s)
t)
u)

18.105.01A_Location Plan
18.105.02_Site Plan (1) – Revised June 2020
DD230L001D_Landscape Proposals Plan – Revised June 2020
18.105.08_Blk J_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.04D_HT Ah_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.06D_Blks A-C&E_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.07F_Blk F_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.10E_HT K_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.11D_HT L_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.12C_Blk GV Floor_Plans and Elevations
18.105.21E_Blk L Floor_Plans and Elevations
18.105.22D_HT ZB_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.25B_HT JV_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.27B_HT M_Floor Plans and Elevations
18.105.28A_HT ZBV_Floor Plans and Elevations
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (April 2019)
Bat Survey (April 19)
Beacon Bottom Reptile Surveys and Outline Mitigation (Dec 2020)
DD230D01_Dormice Mitigation Plan
Beacon Bottom Dormouse Mitigation Strategy (DMS) (Jan 21)
J1128 01 05 Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) – Revised June
2020
v) Beacon Bottom – Phase II Geo environmental assessment
w) AC105923-1r4 – Noise Impact Assessment Revised June 2020
x) ITB14211-004 Carriageway Width Note
y) Transport Statement (June 2020)
z) Transport Statement Appendices (June 2020)
aa) Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (Odyssey date June
2020)
bb) Preliminary Drainage Strategy Plan dwg no. 18-188/001 (Odyssey
dated Feb 2020)
cc) Hydraulic calculations (Odyssey dated Feb 2020)
dd) Site Investigation data (REC dated Oct 2018)
ee) 18.105.17_Carport (rev B)
ff) 18.105.18_Single Garage (rev A)
gg) 18.105.23_Single Plus Garage (rev A)
REASON: To avoid any doubt over what has been permitted.
Condition 24 of the recommendation is amended as follows:
24. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following
schedule of carport and garage provision:
a) A “single plus” garage shall be constructed at plots 14, 15, 16 & 17 in
accordance with approved drawing no. 18.105.23_Single Plus Garage
(rev A);
b) A single garage shall be constructed at plots 11 & 18 in accordance
with approved drawing no. 18.105.18_Single Garage (rev A);
c) A carport shall be constructed for plots 22 & 23 in accordance with
approved drawing no. 18.105.17_Carport (rev B). Thereafter the car

Page 48

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

port shall be retained, without doors, at all times so it is available for its
designated purpose for the parking of vehicles.
REASON: To ensure adequate car parking provision; in accordance with
Policy CS17 of the Fareham Borough Core Strategy.
Comments from HCC Children’s Services
This quantum of development does not require a contribution towards
education infrastructure to be paid.

Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to: (i) The conditions in the report;
(ii) The amended Conditions 2 and 24 in the Update Report;
(iii) The applicant/owner first entering into a planning obligation under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 on terms
drafted by the Solicitor to the Council in respect of the following:
a) To secure a financial contribution towards The Solent Recreation
Mitigation Strategy (SRMS);
b) To secure the provision of affordable housing on-site in the form
of 7no. houses for social rent (2 x 1 bed, 4 x 3 bed & 1 x 4 bed)
and 4no. houses as intermediate housing (2 x 2 bed & 2 x 3 bed)
and a financial contribution for the remaining requirement
equivalent to 0.6 dwellings;
c) To secure the provision of the following highway improvements
to be delivered by the developer through a Section 278
agreement with the highway authority:
i.

ii.

iii.

Delivery of the site access as detailed in drawing no.
ITB14211-GA-002 rev H in submitted Transport Statement
19th June 2020;
Provision of a footpath on the northern side of Beacon
Bottom as detailed in drawing no. ITB14211-GA-002 rev H
in submitted Transport Statement 19th June 2020;
Removal/reduction of overgrown vegetation along Beacon
Bottom as detailed in the Carriageway Width Note
produced by i-Transport dated 2nd May 2019.

d) To secure a financial contribution towards funding
amendments to the existing traffic regulation order (TRO);

of

e) To secure details of the maintenance and management
arrangements for areas of the site not within the defined curtilage
of any of the residential units hereby permitted; and

Page 49

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

(iv) Delegate to the Head of Development Management in consultation with
the Solicitor to the Council to make any minor modifications to the
proposed conditions or heads of terms or any subsequent minor
changes arising out of detailed negotiations with the applicant which
may necessitate the modification which may include the variation,
addition or deletion of the conditions and heads as drafted to ensure
consistency between the two sets of provisions.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to: (i)

The conditions in the report;

(ii)

The amended Conditions 2 and 24 in the Update Report;

(iii)

The applicant/owner first entering into a planning obligation
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
on terms drafted by the Solicitor to the Council in respect of the
following:
a) To secure a financial contribution towards The Solent
Recreation Mitigation Strategy (SRMS);
b) To secure the provision of affordable housing on-site in the
form of 7no. houses for social rent (2 x 1 bed, 4 x 3 bed & 1 x
4 bed) and 4no. houses as intermediate housing (2 x 2 bed &
2 x 3 bed) and a financial contribution for the remaining
requirement equivalent to 0.6 dwellings;
c) To secure the provision of the following highway
improvements to be delivered by the developer through a
Section 278 agreement with the highway authority:
i.

ii.

iii.

Delivery of the site access as detailed in drawing no.
ITB14211-GA-002 rev H in submitted Transport Statement
19th June 2020;
Provision of a footpath on the northern side of Beacon
Bottom as detailed in drawing no. ITB14211-GA-002 rev H
in submitted Transport Statement 19th June 2020;
Removal/reduction of overgrown vegetation along Beacon
Bottom as detailed in the Carriageway Width Note
produced by i-Transport dated 2nd May 2019.

d) To secure a financial contribution towards funding of
amendments to the existing traffic regulation order (TRO);
e) To secure details of the maintenance and management
arrangements for areas of the site not within the defined
curtilage of any of the residential units hereby permitted; and
(iv)

Delegate to the Head of Development Management in
consultation with the Solicitor to the Council to make any minor
Page 50

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

modifications to the proposed conditions or heads of terms or
any subsequent minor changes arising out of detailed
negotiations with the applicant which may necessitate the
modification which may include the variation, addition or deletion
of the conditions and heads as drafted to ensure consistency
between the two sets of provisions.
(2)

P/19/1322/OA - 139 SOUTHAMPTON ROAD TITCHFIELD PO14 4PR

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Amended Officer Recommendation to include reference to the application
being for ‘Outline’ Planning Permission.
9.0 Recommendation
9.1 GRANT OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
outline planning permission, subject to: i) Completion of a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 on terms drafted by the Solicitor to
the Council in respect of the following:
a) To secure the provision and transfer of the areas of open space
and buffer zones to Fareham Borough Council, including
associated financial contributions for future maintenance;
b) To secure a proportionate financial contribution (50% of total
costs) towards the delivery of a play area or play equipment and
associated maintenance within the HA3 housing allocation;
c) To secure a financial contribution towards the Solent Recreation
Mitigation Partnership (SRMP);
d) To secure 40% of the proposed units as on-site affordable
housing; the type, size, mix and tenure to be agreed to the
satisfaction of officers;
e) To secure a financial contribution towards education provision
towards education infrastructure, for provision of school travel
plans and monitoring fees and to provide additional childcare
places;
f) To secure vehicular and pedestrian access and cycle
connectivity to adjoining land to the north right up to the party
boundary in perpetuity;
g) To secure provision of footpath/cyclepath to link site to footway
to the north and the existing Toucan crossing on A27 to the
south; and
ii) The conditions in the report.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to: Page 51

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

i) Completion of a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 on terms drafted by the Solicitor to
the Council in respect of the following:
a) To secure the provision and transfer of the areas of open space
and buffer zones to Fareham Borough Council, including
associated financial contributions for future maintenance;
b) To secure a proportionate financial contribution (50% of total
costs) towards the delivery of a play area or play equipment and
associated maintenance within the HA3 housing allocation;
c) To secure a financial contribution towards the Solent Recreation
Mitigation Partnership (SRMP);
d) To secure 40% of the proposed units as on-site affordable
housing; the type, size, mix and tenure to be agreed to the
satisfaction of officers;
e) To secure a financial contribution towards education provision
towards education infrastructure, for provision of school travel
plans and monitoring fees and to provide additional childcare
places;
f) To secure vehicular and pedestrian access and cycle
connectivity to adjoining land to the north right up to the party
boundary in perpetuity;
g) To secure provision of footpath/cyclepath to link site to footway
to the north and the existing Toucan crossing on A27 to the
south; and
ii) The conditions in the report.
OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION be granted.
(3)

P/20/1190/OA - LAND TO REAR OF 195-205 SEGENSWORTH ROAD
PO15 5EL

The Chairman announced that this application had been withdrawn by the
applicant.
(4)

ENF/52/20 31 Rossan Avenue, Warsash, SO31 9JQ - Engineering
Works Resulting in a Change of Garden Levels

The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and
Regeneration on engineering works resulting in a change of garden levels at
31 Rossan Avenue.
A motion was proposed and seconded that a planning enforcement notice
should be served on the owner of 31 Rossan Avenue in connection with the
unauthorised development comprising engineering works resulting in a change
in the garden level. The harm that has been caused is an unacceptable
adverse impact upon the neighbouring properties as a result of a loss of
privacy and over-looking, contrary to Policy DSP3 of the Local Plan Part 2:
Development Sites and Policies. In order to remedy the breach, the landowner
is required to reinstate the levels in the rear garden back to those which
existed before the engineering works were carried out. The period for

Page 52

Planning Committee

14 July 2021

complying with the planning enforcement notice is three months. The
Committee voted on proposals which were CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that a planning enforcement notice should be served on the
owner of 31 Rossan Avenue in connection with the unauthorised development
comprising engineering works resulting in a change in the garden level. The
harm that has been caused is an unacceptable adverse impact upon the
neighbouring properties as a result of a loss of privacy and over-looking,
contrary to Policy DSP3 of the Local Plan Part 2: Development Sites and
Policies. In order to remedy the breach, the landowner is required to reinstate
the levels in the rear garden back to those which existed before the
engineering works were carried out. The period for complying with the
planning enforcement notice is three months.
(5)

P/21/0736/CU - THE OLD MILL LOWER QUAY PO16 0RA

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted
.
(6)
Planning Appeals
The Committee noted the information in the report.
(7)

UPDATE REPORT

The Update Report was circulated at the meeting and was considered along
with the relevant agenda item.

(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 5.40 pm).

Page 53

Agenda Item 10(2)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Friday, 23 July 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

N J Walker (Chairman)

Councillor

I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Miss J Bull, T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies,
Mrs C L A Hockley, R H Price, JP and S Dugan (deputising for
M J Ford, JP)

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs P M Bryant (Item 5)

Page 55

Planning Committee

1.

23 July 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor’s F Birkett and M J Ford.

2.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman used the Chairman’s announcements to outline how he
intended to run the meeting.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

4.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokesperson Supporting
or
Dep Type
representing
Opposing
the
the
persons Application
listed
WELBORNE – LAND NORTH OF FAREHAM P/17/0266/0A

Mr M Rogers
Mr J Beresford
5.

CCG

Supporting

In Person

Buckland
Development

Supporting

In Person

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs P M Bryant addressed the
Committee on this item.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Fareham East, Fareham North
P/17/0266/OA
Welborne, Land North of Fareham
Introduction:
To help Members identify the appendices in the hard copy agenda papers, the
following page numbers are identified to help:
- Appendix A from page 208;
- Appendix B from page 272;
- Appendix C from page 320;
- Appendix D from page 310; and
Page 56

Planning Committee

23 July 2021

- Appendix E from page 331
Guidance and Policies:
On 20th July the Government updated the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF). Officers have reviewed the new NPPF and consider that both the
policies of the Welborne Plan and the content of the planning application are in
line with the Framework as revised.
Representations:
The applicant, Buckland Development Limited, has responded to the CCG
consultation comments as follows:


Buckland reiterates it is wholly committed to delivering health facilities
at Welborne;



Buckland are committed to delivering these facilities significantly earlier
than their expected requirements, to ensure that positive and
sustainable health opportunities are embedded in Welborne as early as
possible;



It is also important to point out that Welborne’s health facilities (and
indeed the aims for the Health and Wellbeing Hub) hope to contain
more than just facilities operated by the NHS, ensuring that the new
community can also access other elements key to maintaining a healthy
lifestyle;



Buckland are grateful to have received these comments from the CCG,
which are extremely positive and provide a good basis for ongoing
discussions;



Over the years, the position of the CCG in their role for securing
facilities at Welborne has varied, primarily due to the constantly
changing nature of NHS provision and the difficulty in forecasting how
health will be provided for a community which will be developed over a
twenty-year period;



The need to future proof the delivery of the health facility has
significantly influenced our desire to create flexibility, to enable the
health facilities to be provided in a manner which suits the needs of the
new community, and suits the ever evolving working practices at the
NHS;



Buckland wholly support the approach advocated by FBC in their
committee report at 8.15.24, with the Health Steering Group guiding the
approach to the delivery of Health Facilities as both Welborne and the
NHS evolves;



Buckland are also happy to agree that the details of any transfer or
lease would reasonably enable the CCG to provide primary and
community services for Welborne;

Page 57

Planning Committee



23 July 2021

This would be incorporated into the S106, alongside the trigger points
for the delivery of health facilities at Welborne, currently anticipated as
prior to the occupation of 690th dwelling for a temporary facility, and
prior to the occupation of the 3600th dwelling for the Health and
Wellbeing hub.

Planning Considerations:
Health:
The applicant is keen to see health facilities at Welborne and the application
proposes that these facilities would be retained by the applicant and leased to
the service providers at terms to be agreed in the future. The CCG has stated
that their preference is for the land and buildings to be transferred into the
NHS Estates to be able to efficiently deliver healthcare services.
Notwithstanding the terms of occupation of the buildings there is broad
agreement between the two parties over the timing of the Health and
Wellbeing Hub, namely at 3,600 occupations. The parties differ again
regarding the timings for delivery of the Temporary Health Outreach Facility, to
be located in the Local Centre. The applicant proposes that it be delivered by
the time 690 dwellings are occupied and the CCG believes that a figure nearer
the occupation of 2,000 dwellings would be more appropriate.
The Applicant’s response to the consultation comments from the CCG are
encouraging. The support indicated for the framework proposed in the main
agenda (at paragraph 8.15.24) to secure the health facilities at Welborne
through the Section 106 legal agreement is also welcomed despite the
differences between the two parties.
Officers are of the view that FBC can enable and facilitate the delivery of the
health facilities at Welborne through the Section 106 legal agreement as a
result of the applicant’s comments and those of the CCG.
To that end, Officers recommend that this Local Planning Authority’s position
in the delivery of health facilities at Welborne is as per paragraph 8.15.24 of
the main agenda.
The imposition of a pre-commencement trigger within the Section 106 legal
agreement for the establishment of a Health Steering Group will ensure that
healthcare delivery is being considered from the start of work on the site.
This Steering Group will then endeavour to agree a detailed scheme of works
for the two healthcare facilities (the Temporary Healthcare Outreach Facility
and the Health and Wellbeing Hub) as well as the terms of any lease or
transfer. Ultimately this Council in its capacity as the Local Planning Authority
will decide whether the works should be approved or not.
The Section 106 legal agreement will be explicit that by a certain level of
occupation details of the healthcare services to be provided, the scheme(s) of
work for the delivery of healthcare, timings for delivery and details of any lease
or transfer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Officers recommend that the developer is prevented from occupying more than
Page 58

Planning Committee

23 July 2021

1,250 dwellings unless the Council has given its approval for these details in
connection with the Temporary Healthcare Outreach Facility and 2,750
dwellings for the Health and Wellbeing Hub.
A second trigger for each of the healthcare facilities will be detailed within the
Section 106 legal agreement that prevents the occupation of dwellings until
the facilities are provided on site and open for use. Officers believe that these
thresholds should be 2,000 occupations for the Temporary Healthcare
Outreach Facility, and 3,500 occupations for the Health and Wellbeing Hub.
The triggers are drafted to align with the later levels of occupation proposed by
the CCG. If a party opts to deliver a facility earlier than that trigger that would
still accord with the planning obligations.
Recommendation:
In light of the recent changes to the Use Classes Order, condition 07 of the
recommendation is amended to remove references to specific Use Classes as
follows:
07 The development for the following uses will not exceed:
- 3,200m² of food store retail;
- 3,500m² of non-food retail;
- 3,300m² of other non-convenience/comparison retail use, financial and
professional services restaurant and cafes, drinking establishments, and
hot-food takeaway;
- 30,000m² of commercial and employment namely as offices, research
and development or other industrial process;
- 35,000m² of general industrial use;
- 40,000m² of warehousing space for storage or distribution.
REASON: The distribution of land uses on the parameter plans is the
subject of an Environmental Impact Assessment and any material
alteration to the layout may have an impact that has not been assessed
by that process. To ensure a comprehensive and appropriate form of the
interest of protecting the vitality of Fareham Town Centre and other
surrounding centres in Fareham and surrounding Districts.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation at 10.1 of the
report, to confirm the inclusion of the Applicant’s document titled “Welborne
Shadow Appropriate Assessment UPDATE”, dated November 2020 comprises
the Council’s Habitat Regulation Assessment, was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that the Committee CONFIRM the inclusion of the report at
Appendix A, of the report titled “Welborne Shadow Appropriate Assessment
UPDATE”, dated November 2020 comprising the Council’s Habitats
Regulation Assessment.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation at 10.2 of the
report, to delegate to the Head of Development Management to take receipt of
the final written comments of any further outstanding consultation responses
Page 59

Planning Committee

23 July 2021

with the inclusion of any further condition or informatives that may be
recommended;
And
The officer recommendation at 10.3 of the report, to delegate to the Head of
Development Management in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council for
the prior completion of a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure:






























The creation of an Estate Management Company;
o Inclusion of FBC on the board of the Company;
o Service charge arrangements;
o Step in provisions;
The appointment of a New Community Development Worker for a
period of not less than 10 years;
Provision for an Education Steering Group;
Contribution and land for the delivery of three primary schools;
Contribution and land for the delivery of one secondary school;
A Community Use Agreement(s) for the school(s) facilities for public
use outside of the times needed for educational use;
Nursery and pre school marketing strategy;
Provision of the Local Centre;
Local Centre Community Building;
Provision of the District Centre;
District Centre Community building;
Provision of healthcare facilities;
Provision of the Community Hub;
Delivery of Green Infrastructure (GI) – to include:
o All Weather Pitch;
o Tennis Courts;
o Neighbourhood Play Space;
o Youth Play Space;
o Playground Play Equipment;
o Parks and Amenity Open Spaces;
o Playing Pitches and Outdoor Sports Facilities;
o Allotments; and
o Semi Natural Greenspace;
GI Delivery and management arrangements;
Delivery of the Temporary SANGS Strategy;
Provision of Sites of Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS);
In perpetuity management of SANGS including step-in rights by the
Estate Management Company;
SRMP Contribution;
Public Transport – BRT provisions on site and contributions;
Safeguarding of the Rail Halt Land;
A32 access works;
Off site Highway Works Contributions for locations identified by HCC;
Applicant’s £40 million contribution towards the cost of junction 10;
Proportionate reduction of affordable housing in the event that the
applicant makes a financial contribution towards Junction 10 costs
overruns up to a total of £10m;
Off site Local Highway Network mitigation and safety schemes;
Framework residential travel plan;
Page 60

Planning Committee



















23 July 2021

Neighbourhood travel plans;
Framework employment travel plan;
Safeguarding the land for the Household Waste Recycling Centre;
Contribution towards the Household Waste Recycling Centre to include
a proportionate cost of the legal fees;
Affordable housing;
o Amount;
o Tenure;
o Upward review mechanisms;
o Wheelchair accessible homes;
Self Build Housing;
Passivhaus where viability allows;
Lifetime homes where viability allows;
Extra Care accommodation where viability allows;
Mechanism to recover and recycle HIG Funding in accordance with
Homes England’s requirements (subject to approval by this Council’s
Executive);
Business incubation centre;
Employment and training plan for construction;
Equalisation arrangements for the Sawmills site;
Public access to the site;
Improvements to existing rights of way;
Closure, stopping up and diversion of existing rights of way;

And the officer recommendation at 10.4 of the report, to delegate to the
Head of Development Management:
 To make any necessary modification, deletion or addition to the
proposed conditions or heads of terms; and


To make any necessary changes arising out of detailed negotiations
with the applicant which may necessitate the variation, addition or
deletion of the conditions and heads as drafted to ensure
consistency between the two sets of provisions
And was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that the Committee AGREE to delegate to the Head of
Development Management: (i) to take receipt of the final written comments of any further outstanding
consultation responses with the inclusion of any further condition or
informatives that may be recommended;
(ii) in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council for the prior completion
of a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 to secure:


The creation of an Estate Management Company;
o Inclusion of FBC on the board of the Company;
o Service charge arrangements;
o Step in provisions;

Page 61

Planning Committee





































23 July 2021

The appointment of a New Community Development Worker for a
period of not less than 10 years;
Provision for an Education Steering Group;
Contribution and land for the delivery of three primary schools;
Contribution and land for the delivery of one secondary school;
A Community Use Agreement(s) for the school(s) facilities for public
use outside of the times needed for educational use;
Nursery and pre school marketing strategy;
Provision of the Local Centre;
Local Centre Community Building;
Provision of the District Centre;
District Centre Community building;
Provision of healthcare facilities;
Provision of the Community Hub;
Delivery of Green Infrastructure (GI) – to include:
o All Weather Pitch;
o Tennis Courts;
o Neighbourhood Play Space;
o Youth Play Space;
o Playground Play Equipment;
o Parks and Amenity Open Spaces;
o Playing Pitches and Outdoor Sports Facilities;
o Allotments; and
o Semi Natural Greenspace;
GI Delivery and management arrangements;
Delivery of the Temporary SANGS Strategy;
Provision of Sites of Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS);
In perpetuity management of SANGS including step-in rights by the
Estate Management Company;
SRMP Contribution;
Public Transport – BRT provisions on site and contributions;
Safeguarding of the Rail Halt Land;
A32 access works;
Off site Highway Works Contributions for locations identified by HCC;
Applicant’s £40 million contribution towards the cost of junction 10;
Proportionate reduction of affordable housing in the event that the
applicant makes a financial contribution towards Junction 10 costs
overruns up to a total of £10m;
Off site Local Highway Network mitigation and safety schemes;
Framework residential travel plan;
Neighbourhood travel plans;
Framework employment travel plan;
Safeguarding the land for the Household Waste Recycling Centre;
Contribution towards the Household Waste Recycling Centre to include
a proportionate cost of the legal fees;
Affordable housing;
o Amount;
o Tenure;
o Upward review mechanisms;
o Wheelchair accessible homes;
Self Build Housing;
Passivhaus where viability allows;
Page 62

Planning Committee

23 July 2021





Lifetime homes where viability allows;
Extra Care accommodation where viability allows;
Mechanism to recover and recycle HIG Funding in accordance with
Homes England’s requirements (subject to approval by this Council’s
Executive);
 Business incubation centre;
 Employment and training plan for construction;
 Equalisation arrangements for the Sawmills site;
 Public access to the site;
 Improvements to existing rights of way;
 Closure, stopping up and diversion of existing rights of way;
And
(iii) The recommendation at 10.4 of the report;


To make any necessary modification, deletion or addition to the
proposed conditions or heads of terms; and



To make any necessary changes arising out of detailed negotiations
with the applicant which may necessitate the variation, addition or
deletion of the conditions and heads as drafted to ensure
consistency between the two sets of provisions.

Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation at 10.5 of the
report, to grant outline planning permission, subject to the conditions in the
report and Update Report was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that subject to the conditions in the report at 10.5 and the Update
Report, OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION be granted.
6.

UPDATE REPORT
The Update Report was circulated at the meeting and was considered with the
relevant agenda item.
(The meeting started at 9.30 am
and ended at 11.40 am).

Page 63

Agenda Item 10(3)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Friday, 10 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

N J Walker (Chairman)

Councillor

I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

F Birkett, Miss J Bull, T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies,
M J Ford, JP, Mrs C L A Hockley and Mrs K K Trott (deputising
for R H Price, JP)

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs S M Walker (Item 6) and Councillor R H Price, JP
(Item 6)

Page 65

Planning Committee

1.

10 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies of absence were received from Councillor R H Price, JP.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on 14
July 2021 and 23 July 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct
Councillor Cllr N J Walker declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6 – Land
East of Downend Road in that he considers himself to be predetermined on
this application.
He left the meeting and took no part in the discussion or vote on the
application.
Councillor I Bastable, Vice-Chairman, Chaired the remainder of the meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

LAND EAST OF DOWNEND ROAD - PLANNING APPEAL REFERENCE
APP/A1720/W/21/3272188
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Inquiry restart 14th September
On 3rd September Officers wrote to the Planning Inspectorate to request that
the adjourned inquiry be delayed to allow further time for members of the
public to comment on the revised proposals from the Appellant.
A response was received on 6th September to say that the Planning Inspector
considered the revised proposals to represent minor amendments to the
appeal scheme. As such their consideration would not offend the so-called
Wheatcroft principles in terms of prejudicing the interests of interested parties.
The Inspector declined to delay the resumption of the Inquiry which remains
scheduled to restart on 14th September.
Update on Appeal Submission
On 8th September the Appellant Miller Homes Ltd submitted the revised
proposals described at paragraphs 16 & 17 of the Officer committee report to
Page 66

Planning Committee

10 September 2021

the Planning Inspectorate and asked that these amendments be put before the
Inspector for her consideration. The Appellant confirmed that they are willing to
deliver these amendments to the scheme if they are considered, either by the
Council or by the Inspector, to be necessary to address the issue of pedestrian
safety relating to the crossing of Downend Road.
The submission to the Planning Inspectorate is the same at the earlier
submission to the Council with accompanying drawings (including Appendix B
to the Committee report and a tracking plan) and junction modelling
information.
The Appellant has also provided the Inspector with an addendum Agreed
Statement on Transport Matters (ASoTM) signed by the Appellant and
highway authority Hampshire County Council which states that the original
proposed improvement to Downend Riad bridge remains acceptable and:
“the alternative improvement scheme…introducing pedestrian crossing
facilities within the traffic signal junction is also acceptable, and would:
- Deliver safe and suitable access for all users of Downend Road; and
- Operate acceptably and within capacity and would not create any
unacceptable queuing and/or delay on the local highway network.”
Representations
Local residents and other interested parties were notified in writing on 3rd
September of the Appellant’s proposed revisions to provide controlled
pedestrian crossing points at the Downend Road bridge. They were invited to
make any comments relating solely to the revised bridge proposals by 9 th
September.
In response 16 emails have been received. A number of these emails contain
comments which are not related to the bridge proposals or relate to other
planning matters raised previously. A summary of the points made in relation
to the proposed amendments is below:
In relation to queuing and delay:







The proposals will add to queuing and delay
Delays will lead to “rat running” in nearby roads
Temporary traffic lights recently caused queuing and delays in both
directions
Hatched areas should be put at junctions to other side roads to prevent
queuing across those roads
The impact will be compounded by development on the west side of
Downend Road
The queuing and delay will also affect air quality

In relation to the physical design of the bridge improvements:


What is the height of the footpath above the carriageway/kerb height? Is
this safe?
Page 67

Planning Committee






10 September 2021

A protective barrier at the edge of the new footpath including either side
of the bridge should be installed
The proposed drawing is very basic and confusing
There is no run-off area for cars that meet in the middle of the proposed
layout
The width of the carriageway is only 3 metres

In relation to the safety of cyclists:





Concern that a ‘modicum of safety’ for cyclists is considered adequate
A knowledgeable body such as Cycling UK should be consulted
The bridge is relatively safe for cyclists at present due to two way traffic
movement discouraging overtaking
Cyclists could be squeezed by traffic trying to pass them at the bridge if
trying to beat a red light

Other points:




Appellant has shown how an articulated goods vehicle would travel
through the junction but the bridge should not be used by articulated
goods vehicles
This is not in accordance with the draft local plan which requires a new
pedestrian footbridge
Is HCC knowledge sufficient to make a judgement on the bridge
improvements?

Positive comments:




The provision of the controlled pedestrian crossings will add to the
overall safety of pedestrians and in particular students making their way
to Cams Hill School
Removal of pedestrian refuge in centre of road is a good idea
The proposed movement of the stop lines each side of the bridge to
introduce pedestrian crossings may be safer but will lead to further
delay

The Chairman referred Members to the confidential Appendix to the Update
report that had also been circulated to them and enquired as to whether there
were any questions on this, as there were it was proposed to move the
meeting into private session.
RESOLVED that the public and representatives of the press be temporarily
excluded from the meeting on the grounds that the matters to be discussed
involve the likely disclosure of exemption information. As defined in Paragraph
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
At the conclusion of the discussion on the confidential Appendix, the meeting
moved back into open session.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs S Walker addressed the
Committee on this item.
Page 68

Planning Committee

10 September 2021

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed the
Committee on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation that the
Committee confirm that:
a) Subject to the Appellant Miller Homes Ltd submitting amended
proposals to the Planning Inspectorate showing the inclusion of controlled pedestrian crossings as indicated in drawing no. ITB-GA071B (or substantially similar to that drawing):
i)

Those elements of the reason for refusal relating to unacceptable
harm to the safety of users of the highway and the lack of
acceptable pedestrian crossing provision for future residents be
withdrawn;

ii)

For the avoidance of any doubt, the reasons for refusal
previously given are withdrawn in totality.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 0 against; 1 abstention)
RESOLVED that the Committee CONFIRM that:

a) Subject to the Appellant Miller Homes Ltd submitting amended
proposals to the Planning Inspectorate showing the inclusion of controlled pedestrian crossings as indicated in drawing no. ITB-GA071B (or substantially similar to that drawing):

7.

i)

Those elements of the reason for refusal relating to unacceptable
harm to the safety of users of the highway and the lack of
acceptable pedestrian crossing provision for future residents be
withdrawn;

ii)

For the avoidance of any doubt, the reasons for refusal
previously given are withdrawn in totality.

UPDATE REPORT
The Update Report was circulated at the meeting and was considered along
with the relevant agenda item.
(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 3.35 pm).

Page 69

Agenda Item 10(4)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 15 September 2021

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

N J Walker (Chairman)

Councillor

I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

F Birkett, Miss J Bull, T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies,
M J Ford, JP, Mrs C L A Hockley and R H Price, JP

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs K K Trott (Item 5 (6)) and Councillor
Mrs S M Bayford (Item 5 (3))

Page 71

Planning Committee

1.

15 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies of absence for this meeting.

2.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct
Councillor Miss J Bull declared a Personal Interest in item 5(4) – Brookfield
Community School as she has a child at this school.

4.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokespe
rson
representi
ng
the
persons
listed

Subject

Supporting
or
Opposing
the
Application

Item
No/
Application
No/Page No

Dep
Type

The
Fareham
Society

LAND EAST OF
SOUTHAMPTON ROAD
TITCHFIELD –
RESERVED MATTERS
APPLICATION FOR 95
DWELLINGS WITH
ASSOCIATED
INFRASTRUCTURE,
LANDSCAPE, OPEN
SPACE AND APPROVAL
OF DETAILS
PURSUANT TO
CONDITIONS 11, 12
AND 18 FOLLOWING
GRANTING OF
OUTLINE PLANNING
PERMISSION NO.
P/18/0068/OA.
MATTERS TO BE
CONSIDERED:
APPEARANCE,
LANDSCAPING,
LAYOUT AND SCALE

Opposing

5 (1)
P/20/1584/RM
Pg 5

Written

ZONE 1 –
2.30pm

Mr R
Marshall

Page 72

Planning Committee

Ms L
Wiltshire

Mr J Gorrod

Mr R
Marshall
Mr P Keenan
(Agent)

Mr P Lindsey

The
Fareham
Society

15 September 2021
-DITTO-

Supporting

-Ditto-

LOCKS HEATH
SHOPPING CENTRE,
CENTRE WAY LOCKS
HEATH –
RECONFIGURATION OF
EXISTING CENTRE
WAY ACCESS ROAD,
BUS LANE & SHOPPING
CENTRE CAR PARK
LAYOUT TO PROVIDE:
A NEW ROUNDABOUT
JUNCTION ON CENTRE
WAY TO PROVIDE
ACCESS TO MAIN CAR
PARKS, ALTERATION
TO THE PUBLIC CAR
PARK LAYOUT TO
ALLOW THE FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT OF
AREAS 1 AND 2 AND
THE REDUCTION OF
PARKING
SPACES,PROVISION
OF A NEW BUS
TURNING FACILITY
PROVIDED ON CENTRE
WAY AT THE WESTERN
END OF THE
SHOPPING CENTRE,
PROVISION OF A
DECKED CAR PARK
WITHIN THE DTAFF
PARKING AREA AND
ASSOCIATED
LANDSCAPING AND
PUBLIC REALM
IMPROVEMENTS
CONNECTED WITH THE
PROPOSALS.
-DITTO-

Opposing

5 (3)
P/21/0148/FP
Pg 23

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Written

-DITTO-

Supporting

-Ditto-

BROOKFIELD
COMMUNITY SCHOOL
SARISBURY GREEN
SO31 7DU – CREATION
OF 3G ARTIFICIAL
GRASS PITCH (AGP)
WITH PERIMETER
FENCING,

Opposing

5 (4)
P/21/0693/FP
Pg 39

In
Person
In
person

Page 73

In
Person
In
Person

Planning Committee

15 September 2021
FLOODLIGHTING,
MACADAM
HARDSTANDING
AREAS, STORAGE
CONTAINER & SOIL
BUNDS
-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

In
Person
Written

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Written

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

In
Person

Mr T
Dickenson

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Ms E Kirby

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Video

Ms R Alinson

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Video

Opposing

5 (5)
P/21/0942/FP
Pg 58

Written

Mr G Reeder

8 LOWER CHURCH
ROAD – TWO STOREY
REAR AND SIDE
EXTENSION
-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Written

Ms A Bradley

-DITTO-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Written

-DITTO-

Supporting

-Ditto-

In
Person

3 EARL GODWIN
CLOSE FAREHAM –
FIRST FLOOR REAR
BALCONY

Supporting

5 (7)
P/21/0950/FP
Pg 69

In
Person

Ms M Lush
Ms S
Gillingham
Mr & Mrs
Rennie
Mr M Lunn

Mr & Mrs
Fleming

Mr M Line

ZONE 2 –
2.30pm
Mr I
Donohue
(Agent)

ZONE 3 –
2.30pm

5.

PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS

MATTERS

The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the development control matters, including information regarding new
appeals and decisions.

Page 74

Planning Committee

(1)

15 September 2021

P/20/1584/RM - LAND EAST OF SOUTHAMPTON ROAD PO14 4PR

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 4 above.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
approval subject to:
i) The applicant first providing revised plans to take account of two minor
revisions to the shared surface layout to the satisfaction of Officers;
and
ii) The conditions in the report
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to:
i) The applicant first providing revised plans to take account of two minor
revisions to the shared surface layout to the satisfaction of Officers;
and
ii) The conditions in the report.
APPROVAL be granted.
(2)

Q/1504/21 - LAND EAST OF SOUTHAMPTON ROAD

Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation that
Members authorise the deed of variation to the legal agreement be agreed
along the following lines:
a) To remove the obligation relating to the transfer of the public open
space including play area and wildlife corridor to the Council;
b) To secure details of robust and appropriate management and
maintenance measures relating to the public open space including play
area and wildlife corridor in lieu of the land being transferred to the
Council, including details on the formation, funding and governance of
the body responsible for doing so;
c) To delegate to the Head of Development Management authority to
agree suitable revised and additional obligations in respect of the
above, and any other matters deemed necessary, in relation to
Schedule Five of the legal agreement.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 2 against)
RESOLVED that Members AUTHORISE the deed of variation to the legal
agreement along the following lines:
a) To remove the obligation relating to the transfer of the public open
space including play area and wildlife corridor to the Council;
b) To secure details of robust and appropriate management and
maintenance measures relating to the public open space including play
area and wildlife corridor in lieu of the land being transferred to the
Council, including details on the formation, funding and governance of
the body responsible for doing so;
Page 75

Planning Committee

15 September 2021

c) To delegate to the Head of Development Management authority to
agree suitable revised and additional obligations in respect of the
above, and any other matters deemed necessary, in relation to
Schedule Five of the legal agreement.
(3)

P/21/0148/FP - LOCKS HEATH SHOPPING CENTRE CENTRE WAY
SO31 6DX

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 4 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs S M Bayford addressed the
Committee on this item.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: An additional 123 objections have been received from local residents and 1
support comment has been received from Waitrose.
The representations received do not raise any new issues that have not
already been addressed in the Officer’s Committee Report.
Members raised concerns about the loss of the parking spaces, and how this
could affect the vibrancy of the shopping centre. However, they welcomed to
the redesign of the car park to allow better flow of traffic and easier parking.
A motion was proposed and seconded to defer the application, to allow
officers the opportunity to discuss with the applicant the reconfiguration of the
car park which does not result in the loss of any parking to ensure that the
vitality and viability of the centre is retained. Further information is also
requested regarding how this proposal relates to the future development of the
area, and was CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that the application be DEFERRED.
(4)

P/21/0693/FP - BROOKFIELD COMMUNITY SCHOOL BROOK LANE
SO31 7DU

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 4 above.
The first of the video deputations unfortunately was not able to be fully played
due to soe technical issues, however the deputee confirmed that their points
had been raised by other deputations and therefore had no issue with the
Committee not being able to hear the whole of their deputation.
The Committee Manager read out a statement on behalf of Councillor S D
Martin, Ward Councillor.
At the invitation of the Chairman, the Headmaster of Brookfield Community
School addressed the Committee on this item to answer questions from
members.
Page 76

Planning Committee

15 September 2021

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Representations:
One further letter has been received in response to the publication of the
Committee agenda. The comments raised are:
 It is disputed that there will not be an adverse impact in neighbours
(para 8.49) as we can already hear sports activity on the pitches behind
the site at less frequent hours of use.
 Changing operating hours clearly acknowledges that this will be a noisy
venture.
 The construction schedule gives Brookfield Gardens residents far more
consideration than the AGP.
 The pitch is too close to residential homes. There is so much room
between this school and Sarisbury Infants.
 I have no objection if Everyone Active had made the application as no
residents would be affected.
 Brookfield Gardens slopes down from the school so the site is actually
higher than the neighbours. 2m high bunds will not offset the intrusive
lighting on 5m tall stanchions or the noise from sport.
Recommendation:
Within the applicants Noise Impact Assessment it is recommended that a
Noise Management Plan is implemented as part of the development. This can
be included with an adjustment to condition 11 in the main agenda to include
“a noise management plan” as follows:
11. Prior to first use of the Artificial Grass Pitch a community use agreement
prepared in consultation with Sport England must be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreement shall
apply to the Artificial Grass Pitch, any ancillary accommodation and the car
park, and include details of pricing policy, hours of use, access by noneducational establishment users, management responsibilities, a noise
management plan and a mechanism for review. The development shall not
be used otherwise than in strict compliance with the approved agreement.
REASON: To secure well managed safe community access to the sports
facility, to ensure sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to
accord with development plan policy.
Councillor Miss J Bull declared a personal interest in this item as she has a
child that attends this School.
Members expressed concern over the lack of consultation from the School
with the neighbouring properties, and felt that many of the concerns raised in
the objections to the application had not been addressed.
A motion was proposed and seconded to defer the application, to allow the
school to undertake a public consultation on the plans and to try and resolve,
by amendments to the application where appropriate, some of the concerns
that have been raised to include:

Page 77

Planning Committee

15 September 2021

- Noise impact and the accuracy of the assessment and conclusions within the
submitted Noise Assessment;
- The use of micro plastic in the pitch construction, rubber crumb on its surface
and the pitch lifecycle; and
- The siting of the pitch,
and was CARRIED.
(Voting: 5 in favour; 4 against)
RESOLVED that the application be DEFERRED to allow the School to
undertake a public consultation.
(5)

P/21/0942/FP - 8 LOWER CHURCH ROAD PO14 4PN

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 4 above.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Further Information Provided:
Further information has been provided by the applicant in response to a thirdparty comment received in relation to the proposed plans. The points raised
are:
 The proposed foundations have been assessed as suitable by the
architect and have obtained building control approval.
 The proposed extension will be constructed wholly on the application
property, and no part of the structure, including foundations or guttering,
will project over the property boundary.
 As a result of building works at the adjoining property, the current
structure has suffered from water ingress, which is causing damp in
ground floor rooms.
 No access will be required across neighbouring properties in order to
carry out any construction works.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted.
(6)

P/21/1089/TO - 10 BRONTE GARDENS PO15 7LF

A motion was proposed and seconded to refuse this application as Members
considered that the issues have arisen from poor construction of the building,
with insufficient foundations, and that the loss of trees proposed to be felled
would be harmful to the visual amenity of the area. The motion was voted on
and CARRIED.
(Voting: 6 in favour; 1 against; 2 abstention)
RESOLVED that CONSENT be REFUSED.

Page 78

Planning Committee

(7)

15 September 2021

P/21/0950/FP - 3 EARL GODWIN CLOSE PO16 0DW

Councillor Mrs Hockley, left the room at the start of this item and took no part
in the remainder of the meeting.
The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 4 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs K K Trott, Ward Councillor,
addressed the Committee on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the condition in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted.
(8)

P/21/1358/FP - STREETLIGHTING CASTLE STREET WATERSIDE
LANE HOSPITAL LANE PORTCHESTER

Councillor P J Davies left the room at the start of this item and took no further
part in the meeting.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Since the publication of the Committee Report, an additional consultation
COMMENT FROM English Heritage has been received, stating:
Some of the works proposals are within the English Heritage Guardianship
area of Portchester Castle and full consultation with an approval by English
Heritage is required here. Archaeological monitoring and recording is likely to
be required, tother with agreement on dates of access and works
methodology. Replacement with as similar colour to the existing lampposts is
likely to be preferred.
In addition, scheduled monument consent from Historic England for works
within the scheduled monument area will be required.
Discussions are already underway with FBC officers and SSE on these
aspects.
In addition, Historic England have updated their response to reflect the age of
the existing columns. However, this amendment has not changed their view
regarding the removal of the existing columns.
Further email correspondence has continued with SSEC and FBC since
publication of the report, requesting the suitability of the root plated Norwich
columns for fixing and the cost difference between the proposed
Gainsborough and requested Norwich columns.

Page 79

Planning Committee

15 September 2021

SSEC response to Norwich Column Option:
Following a contract review of the units to be replaced in Castle Street and
Hospital Lane Portchester the view from the PFI responsibilities have been
fulfilled with the proposal to replace the existing units with a standard tubular
steel shaft and using one of two options of embellishment kit.
1. The Gainsborough embellishment kit, black or green in colour.
2. The Chandler embellishment kit, black or green in colour. This kit has
been used to replace one unit already in Castle Street as it had been
RTC’d.
SSE Contracting have investigated your suggestion of the Norwich unit, and
we have given this suggestion our full consideration. However, we have
already removed and replaced many cast columns within the Hampshire PFI
using one of our two equivalent, and a higher standard column is not required.
The previously replaced columns on the Hampshire PFI have been replaced
with either the Gainsborough kit or Chandler kit which are both of the correct
standard and specification set out within the Hampshire PFI contract with
Hampshire County Council.
Please confirm which one of the two options you are happy to move forward
with so that i may programme the units replacement.
If we do not hear from you by the 17th September 2021, we will proceed with
the Chandler embellishment kit to match the unit 22 Castle Street that had
been replaced under maintenance through the PFI.
RESOLVED that members agreed with officers that no evidence has been
provided by SSEC to clarify why they are structurally unsafe and therefore at
the end of their life. Without this information, members consider that the
existing lighting columns should be retained.
In the event that evidence can be provided to support the opinion of SSEC
regarding the state of the columns, SSEC and Hampshire County Council
should seek to replace the columns with a higher quality alternative than those
originally suggested.
(9)

Planning Appeals

The Committee noted the information in the report.
(10)

Update Report

The Update Report was circulated at the meeting and was considered along
with the relevant agenda item.

(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 8.50 pm).

Page 80

Agenda Item 10(5)

Minutes of the
Audit and Governance Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 27 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

T Davies (Chairman)

Councillors:

P J Davies, Mrs T L Ellis, G Kelly and S Dugan (deputising for S
D Martin)

Also
Present:

Page 81

Audit and
Committee

1.

Governance

27 September 2021

APOLOGIES
Apologies of absence were received from Councillors S D Martin, N R Gregory
and G Fazackarley.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Minutes from the Audit and Governance Committee held
on the 12 July 2021 be agreed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
No announcements were made by the Chairman.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations received at this meeting.

6.

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Committee received a report by the Director of Leisure and Community
providing members with an overview of the annual performance of each of the
partnerships that Fareham Borough Council is part of and allowing Members
to request further information or clarification over the governance
arrangements in place.
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee: a) note the contents of the report; and
b) there were no requests for further information or clarification on any
Significant Partnerships where members had concerns over the
governance arrangements in place.

7.

ANNUAL OMBUDSMAN REPORTS AND OVERVIEW OF COMPLAINTS
AGAINST MEMBERS
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Leisure and Community
providing details of the complaints made to the Council via the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman, the Housing Ombudsman Service
and any complaints in respect of breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Members for the year up to 31 March 2021.
The Policy, Research and Engagement Manager presented the report to the
Committee. Members commented on the Council’s excellent record with
complaints handling, with no complaints being upheld during 2020/21.
Page 82

Audit and
Committee

Governance

27 September 2021

RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee note the contents of
the report.
8.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Committee considered a report from the Deputy Chief Executive Officer
on the unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2020/21. The external audit of the
accounts is due during October so the audited Statement of Accounts will be
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee along with the Audit
Results Report on 22 November 2021.
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee approves the
unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, attached as Appendix A, for
publication by 30 September 2021.

9.

REVIEW AND PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
The Committee received a verbal update from the Head of Finance and Audit
on the conclusions from the review of the Council’s Procurement and Contract
Procedure Rules that were introduced in October 2018. No changes of the
rules were proposed at this time.
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee note the contents of
the verbal update.

10.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit
providing the assurances arising from the latest internal audit work and
updating on the progress being made with delivering the audit plans. Mark
Somerset, Audit Manager from the partnership with Portsmouth City Council,
addressed the Committee to explain the challenges that the internal audit
partners have faced in completing the internal audit work. He reassured the
Committee that although there has been a delay, they feel positive that they
will be able to catch up by the end of the year.
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee notes the progress
and findings arising from Internal Audit work.

11.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME AND TRAINING PLAN
The Committee received a report by the Monitoring Officer reviewing the
Committees work programme for 2021/22.
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee approve the work
programme for the rest of the municipal year, as shown in Appendix A to this
report.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.31 pm).
Page 83

Audit and
Committee

Governance

27 September 2021

Page 84

Agenda Item 10(6)

Minutes of the
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 28 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

M J Ford, JP (Chairman)

Councillor

T M Cartwright, MBE (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

I Bastable, Mrs S M Bayford, Mrs P M Bryant, T Davies,
J M Englefield, Mrs P Hayre, Mrs J Kelly, Ms S Pankhurst,
R H Price, JP, Mrs K K Trott and Mrs S M Walker

Also
Present:

Page 85

Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

1.

28 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

2.

MINUTES
(1)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 20 July 2021 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee meeting held on 20 July 2021 be confirmed and signed as a
correct record.
(2)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 24 August 2021 of Licensing Panel

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Licensing Panel held on 24 August 2021
be confirmed and signed as a correct record.
3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
A deputation was made in respect of Item 7 on the agenda by Lyn Rowe, a
market trader in the Town Centre.

6.

UPDATE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION REVIEW
The Committee considered a presentation by the Head of Democratic Services
which provided an update for Members on the Local Government Boundary
Commission Review. A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes
as Appendix A.
In outlining the timeline and process for the Local Government Boundary
Review, Members were informed that they would be invited to provide input
into the Council’s submission to the Boundary Commission in respect of their
involvement in the Community, how they provide Leadership to the Community
and how they manage their case work. Members will be given the opportunity
to review the Council’s final submission at the Committee meeting in
November before it is presented to full Council for approval in December.
RESOLVED that the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee notes the
content of the presentation.

7.

STREET TRADING CONSENT CONDITIONS
This item was brought forward on the agenda and heard directly after Item 5.
Page 86

Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

28 September 2021

A deputation was made in respect of this item by Lyn Rowe, a market trader in
the town centre.
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Environmental Health
which put forward proposals to amend the conditions of trading for Market
Traders.
Following the debate of this item it was proposed by Councillor R H Price, JP
and seconded by Councillor J M Englefield that Paragraph 26 of the
Suggested Amended Street Trading Conditions as attached at Appendix C to
the report be amended to read ‘Traders working as part of the Fareham
Monday Market shall be required to use uniform gazebos with blue and white
quarters or provide a top to their stall that matches the same colours and
design of the gazebo’. On being put to the vote, the motion was declared
carried with 12 members voting in favour and 1 abstention.
RESOLVED that, subject to the amendment to paragraph 26, as outlined
above, the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee approves the
Suggested Amended Street Trading Conditions as attached at Appendix C to
the report.
8.

LICENSING AND
PROGRAMME

REGULATORY

AFFAIRS

COMMITTEE

WORK

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Environmental Health
which provided an opportunity for Members to review the Work Programme for
2021/22.
During the discussion of this item, it was confirmed that Licensing training has
been arranged for members and will take place on 22nd October 2021.
RESOLVED that the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee:
(a) notes the progress on actions arising from the meeting of the
Committee held on 20 July 2021, as shown in Appendix A to the report;
and
(b) agrees the updated Work Programme 2021/22, as attached as
Appendix B to the report.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.55 pm).

Page 87

Agenda Item 11(1)

Minutes of the
Health and Public Protection Scrutiny
Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 18 August 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Miss J Bull (Chairman)

Councillor

Ms S Pankhurst (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs P M Bryant, Mrs T L Ellis, J M Englefield, Miss T G Harper
and Mrs K K Trott

Also
Present:

G Fazackarley, Mrs J Kelly and R H Price, JP

Page 89

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

1.

18 August 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence given at this meeting, however it was
noted that Councillor J K Kelly was unable to sit on the Panel due to a
pecuniary interest.

2.

MINUTES
An amendment to paragraph 7 on page 4 of the minutes was agreed to clarify
that Sovereign Healthcare represent three Primary Care Networks.
RESOLVED that, subject to the amendment above, the minutes of the Health
and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 13 July 2021 be
confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced that this meeting of the Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel had been convened to consider the Individual
Executive Member Decision made by the Executive Member for Health and
Public Protection on Wednesday 28 July 2021. That decision agreed to adopt
the updated Off-Street Parking Places (Amendment 4) Order which was
appended to the report.
The Chairman informed the Panel that the decision had not yet been
implemented because it had been called-in by 3 non-Executive Members, as
per the Council's Constitutional arrangements.
The Chairman explained that after the report on the item had been presented,
she would invite Councillors Price, Fazackarley and Mrs Kelly as the
representatives of the call-in, to present the reasons they had given for callingin the decision. The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection would
then be invited to join the meeting to explain how the decision on adoption of
the Traffic Regulation Order was reached. The Chairman also explained that
she had asked the Council’s Solicitor to intervene at any point in the meeting
where she felt that discussion was straying into matters outside the terms of
the call-in notice.
The Chairman reminded members that the Scrutiny Panel is tasked with
considering the reasons given for the call-in and could only determine if the
decision had been handled appropriately. She went on to explain that the
options open to the Scrutiny Panel were either:
(a) to accept the decision made by the Executive Member for Health and
Public Protection, in which case the decision could be implemented; or
(b) to request that the Executive Member for Health and Public Protection
reconsiders the decision, giving reasons for such a request.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OR ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
Page 90

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

18 August 2021

There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.
5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Panel received the deputations as listed in the table below. It was
confirmed that all Deputees had been advised prior to the meeting that
deputations must be on the grounds relating to the reasons for call-in only and
that the Chairman may intervene if necessary.
Name

Item

Bronwyn Kirk

Item 6 – Executive Member Decision No
2291 – Portchester car parks Traffic In person
Regulation Order
-dittoWritten

Janet Cooke

Type
of
Deputation

Gareth Jones

-ditto-

Written

Graham Allibone

-ditto-

Written

Kate Tame

-ditto-

In person

John Halsey

-ditto-

Written

Keith Barton

-ditto-

Written

Neil Young

-ditto-

Written

John Elkington

-ditto-

In person

Percy O’Dell

-ditto-

In person

Sally Young

-ditto-

In person

Gerry Kelly

-ditto-

In person

The Deputees were thanked accordingly for providing their deputations.
6.

CALL IN OF INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION NO: 2291 PORTCHESTER CAR PARKS TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER CONSIDERATION OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES
The Panel received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above in respect of
this item.
The Panel considered a report by the Head of Democratic Services which
outlined the reasons given for the call-in of the Executive Member decision
regarding the Portchester Castle car parks Traffic Regulation Order. An
amendment at paragraph 1 of the report was noted in that the Executive
Member for Health and Public Protection resolved to adopt the Updated OffStreet Parking Places (Amendment 4) Order on the 28 July and not on 18 July
Page 91

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

18 August 2021

as stated. A number of Appendices were attached to the report to further
assist the Panel in its review of the decision. Appendices A and B provided a
copy of the call-in notice which cited the grounds for the call-in.
Councillor R H Price, JP, summarised the reasons put forward for the call-in
and answered points for clarification from the Panel.
Councillor G Fazackarley addressed the Panel to make a statement of support
for the call-in.
At the request of the Chairman, the Solicitor clarified the legal position with
regards to the consultation requirements in making a Traffic Regulation Order
and confirmed that, in this case, the requirements had been complied with.
At the invitation of the Chairman, the Executive Member for Health and Public
Protection joined the meeting and was called upon to advise the Panel of the
process undertaken in making the decision and how the decision was
reached. The Executive Member answered questions put to him by the Panel
and then, in accordance with the Council’s constitution, left the meeting and
was not present for the remainder of the meeting.
The Chairman confirmed that having considered all the reasons given for the
call in, the Panel now had to consider its options as set out in the report. That
being either:
(a) to accept the decision made by the Executive Member for Health and
Public Protection, in which case the decision could be implemented; or
(b) to request that the Executive Member for Health and Public Protection
reconsider the decision, giving reasons for such a request.
A motion was proposed by Councillor Mrs P M Bryant and seconded by
Councillor Ms S Pankhurst to accept the decision made by the Executive
Member for Health and Public Protection and to allow the decision to be
implemented. Councillor J Englefield requested a recorded vote and the vote
was therefore carried out by roll call. On being put to the vote, the motion was
declared CARRIED (Councillors Ms S Pankhurst, Mrs P M Bryant and Mrs T L
Ellis voting in favour, Councillors J Englefield and Mrs K K Trott voting against
and Councillor Miss T Harper abstaining.)
RESOLVED that the Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel accepts the
decision made by the Executive Member for Health and Public Protection and
agrees that the decision to adopt the updated Off-street Parking Places
(Amendment 4) Order be implemented.
(The meeting started at 6.02 pm
and ended at 8.15 pm).

Page 92

Agenda Item 11(2)

Minutes of the
Daedalus Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 7 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

S Dugan (Chairman)

Councillor

Mrs P Hayre (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs S M Bayford, Miss J Bull, M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest and
Mrs K Mandry

Also
Present:

Jonathan Butts (Co-opted Member), Councillor T M Cartwright
(Item 6) and Councillor S D T Woodward.

Page 93

Daedalus Scrutiny Panel

1.

7 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies of absence.

2.

MINUTES
Co-opted member Jonathan Butts addressed the Panel on this item. He
requested that the draft minutes be amended to include the following wording:
“Jonathan Butts requested that both the existing policies relating to Daedalus,
and forthcoming delivery plans with their associated risk assessments are
made available to the Scrutiny Panel as appropriate to help the Panel to
effectively undertake it’s scrutiny role”.
RESOLVED that, subject to the inclusion of the wording above, the minutes of
the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 24 June 2021 be confirmed and
signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTION
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

SCRUTINY PRIORITIES
The Daedalus Strategic Lead addressed the Panel on this item and explained
that she has put together a draft Scrutiny plan which incorporated the
suggestions made by the Panel at its last meeting and in line with the notice or
key decisions which contain upcoming decisions to be taken by the Executive
and that require pre-scrutiny.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor T M Cartwright, addressed the
Panel on this item.
The Panel discussed the suggestions that had been raised by Jonathan Butts
at item 2, previous minutes, and it was agreed that policy documents relating
to the Vision for Daedalus, the three-year Review and the emerging Local Plan
policies relating to Daedalus, would be circulated to members of the Panel,
and if there are any further issues that members would like to be addressed
they can raise this at the next meeting of the Panel on 20 October.

7.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
The Panel considered the Executive items of business which fall under the
remit of the Policy and Resources Portfolio, specifically in relation to Daedalus,
Page 94

Daedalus Scrutiny Panel

7 September 2021

including Executive Member decisions and Officer delegated decisions, that
have all taken place since the last meeting of the Panel on 24 June 2021.
The Panel considered the decisions at item 7(1) or the agenda.
RESOLVED that the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel considered the following items
of Business.
(1)
Variation to Construction of New Units at Faraday Business Park,
Daedalus
Councillor Forrest enquired as to the background behind the decision that was
taken by the Executive at its meeting on 5 July 2021.
Jonathan Butts enquired as to how much would this variation take the project
over its initial budget. The Director of Planning and Regeneration referred the
Panel to the decision notice and the Executive report where this information is
set out.
8.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED that the public and representatives of the press be excluded from
the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that the matters to be dealt with
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in Paragraph 3
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

9.

SOLENT AIRPORT OPERATOR CONTRACT
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the Solent Airport Operator Contract.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends that the Executive approve the report
when it considers it at its meeting on 21 September 2021.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.38 pm).

Page 95

Agenda Item 11(3)

Minutes of the
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 14 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

M R Daniells (Chairman)

Councillor

P J Davies (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

T Davies, J S Forrest, N R Gregory, L Keeble and N J Walker

Also
Present:

Page 97

Planning and Development
Scrutiny Panel

1.

14 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies of absence received at this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
It was AGREED that the Minutes of the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel
held on the 25 May 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no announcements made by the Chairman.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest received from Members of the Panel.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations received at this meeting.

6.

PLANNING STRATEGY UPDATE
The Panel considered a presentation from the Head of Planning Strategy and
Economic Development on prevailing Planning Strategy Matters. The
presentation included a summary of the responses received on the Revised
Publication Local Plan Consultation, which ran from June-July 2021.
The Head of Planning Strategy and Economic Development ran through each
site in turn, for which comments had been received and concluded with
information on the next steps for the Council’s Local Plan. Members asked
questions and commented as appropriate throughout the presentation. A copy
of the presentation is appended to these Minutes.
The Head of Planning Strategy and Economic Development concluded by
providing Members with a brief overview of a new Government scheme for
affordable housing, First Homes. Although this is a housing initiative it will
have an impact on the Council’s Planning process, therefore Members were
reminded that an item will be presented at the Housing Scrutiny Panel on the
16 September 2021 which will provide more details on the scheme.
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel note the
contents of the presentation.

7.

COUNCIL TREES SERVICE REVIEW
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration
on the Council’s Tree Service Review. The report provided an opportunity for
the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel to scrutinise the report prior to
the Executive meeting on the 21 September 2021.
Page 98

Planning and Development
Scrutiny Panel

14 September 2021

The Head of Development Management presented the report highlighting the
key areas of the review and how these in turn have influenced the
recommendations put to the Executive for decision. The Panel expressed their
support for the proposals and asked questions for clarification throughout the
discussions.
Members of the Panel provided details of possible funding opportunities for
tree planting and discussed the importance of tapping into as much available
funding as possible. Officers explained that a lot of work has already been
carried out to investigate funding opportunities for tree. It is expected that this
work will increase once the proposals from the review have been agreed.
Members also enquired about the link to the proposed revisions to Council’s
Tree Planting programme and the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan,
asking for reassurance that these changes wouldn’t have a detrimental impact
on the number of trees planted each year. Officers explained that with a reorganisation of the proactive tree planting towards strategic sites it was not
anticipated that there would be an overall reduction in the number of trees
planted and that this will be monitored by officers.
Members enquired as to which trees types capture the most carbon and if
consideration could be given to this as part of the Council’s Tree Planting
programme. Officers agreed to investigate this matter and notify Members of
the Panel accordingly.
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel: a) note the contents of the Executive report at Appendix 1; and

8.

b) recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 21 September 2021,
that it endorses the recommendations as set out in Appendix 1.
EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
(1)

Approval of Revised Charging Schedule for CIL

No comments received.
(2)
Coastal Partnership - Chichester District Council request to join
Coastal Partners
No comments received.
(3)
Housing Delivery Test Action Plan
No comments received.
(4)
Local Development Scheme
No comments received.
(5)
Revised Publication Local Plan Consultation
Members asked if the Revised Publication Local Plan will be used to
determine planning applications. Officers explained that it will certainly be a
material consideration in determining planning applications.
9.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
Page 99

Planning and Development
Scrutiny Panel

14 September 2021

The Chairman asked Members of the Panel to consider the priorities for the
Panel.
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny panel considered the
priorities for the Panel.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 8.17 pm).

Page 100

Agenda Item 11(4)

Minutes of the
Housing Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Thursday, 16 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor
Councillor

N R Gregory (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

S Dugan, Mrs C L A Hockley, Ms S Pankhurst and Mrs K K Trott

Also
Present:

Councillor F Birkett, Executive Member for Housing

Page 101

Housing Scrutiny Panel

1.

16 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs K Mandry and G
Fazackarley.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Housing Scrutiny Panel meeting held on
08 July 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced that, as part of the Council’s objectives to make
Council homes greener, he was pleased to advise that officers will be looking
to access Local Authority Delivery Phase 2 government funding, known as
LAD2. This funding will pay two thirds of the overall costs towards making
some energy efficiency improvements to a number of Council homes,
contributing to the Council’s objectives around greener homes and also
helping to improve the comfort and costs for tenants. Officers intend to take a
full report in respect of this funding to the Council’s October meeting of the
Executive.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
There were no items of Executive business for consideration at this meeting.

7.

DRAFT HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING STRATEGY
The Panel considered a report by the Head of Housing and Benefits which
presented the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy for Members’
consideration and comment.
Following discussion and review of the draft policy, members commented that
it had been a very good idea to commission the independent review of
homelessness services provided by the Council and commended the Housing
officers for the excellent service provided to residents.
The Panel was fully supportive of the draft Strategy and had no suggested
amendments to make.
Members requested that, as this will be a long term, rolling strategy, an annual
review of progress be added to the scrutiny priorities for the Panel.

Page 102

Housing Scrutiny Panel

16 September 2021

RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel agrees that:
(a) the draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy be
recommended to the Executive for approval to commence a period of
public consultation; and
(b) once approved, an annual review of the Strategy be added to the
scrutiny priorities for the Panel.
8.

AFFORDABLE HOME OWNERSHIP UPDATE
The Panel received a presentation by the Head of Housing Delivery in respect
of Affordable home ownership and the introduction of the First Homes scheme.
A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes as Appendix A.
The presentation highlighted that the First Homes Scheme has a set of
national eligibility criteria which can be supplemented by locally agreed criteria
set by the Council. Due to the short timescales for implementation of the First
Homes Scheme, members were invited to submit any suggested local criteria
to officers, via the Chairman, so that they can be considered for inclusion in a
potential First Homes Policy for approval by the Executive.
As this is a new and emerging scheme, members requested that an update be
provided at the next meeting.
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel:
(a) notes the content of the presentation; and
(b) agrees that an update on the Scheme be provided at the next meeting.

9.

HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
Members considered and discussed the Scrutiny Priorities for the Panel and
agreed the following additions to the Scrutiny Priorities Plan:
(i) An annual review of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
(ii) An update on the First Homes Scheme at the next meeting of the Panel
(iii) A future update on progress with the objective of making Council owned
homes greener.
Members asked that it be noted on record that the recently completed
development at Rose Court is brilliant and that the Panel is delighted with its
success.
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel agrees that items (i) to (iii) as
outlined above be added to the Scrutiny Priorities Plan for the Panel.
(The meeting started at 6.01 pm
and ended at 7.19 pm).
Page 103

Housing Scrutiny Panel

16 September 2021

Page 104

Agenda Item 11(5)

Minutes of the
Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 29 September 2021

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs C L A Hockley (Chairman)

Councillor

Mrs L E Clubley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs S M Bayford, J M Englefield, M J Ford, JP, Mrs K K Trott
and Miss T G Harper

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs S M Walker

Page 105

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

1.

29 September 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies of absence were received at the meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
meeting held on the 01 June 2021 be signed and agreed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman made no announcements at the meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
No declarations of interest were made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations received at this meeting.

6.

RESTARTING OF THE REMODELLING OF FAREHAM LIVE PROJECT
The Panel received a report from the Director of Leisure and Community which
provided an opportunity for Members to pre-scrutinise the Executive report on
restarting the remodelling of the Fareham Live Project.
As a significant part of the Executive report contains exempt information the
Chairman suggested that the Panel move the meeting into private session.
RESOLVED that the meeting move into private session to exclude members of
the public and press as defined in Paragraph 3, Part 1 of schedule A of the
Local Government Act 1972 in order to discuss the exempt information
contained within Appendix A of the Executive report.
Members of the Panel discussed the report and on balance, although there
are concerns over the change to the risks surrounding the project, support the
recommendations set out in the Executive report. The Deputy Chief Executive
officer summarised the comments received by Members of the Panel and it
was agreed through the Chairman these comments would be passed to the
Executive for consideration.
Members of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel agreed that: i) the Fareham Live project is a key part of the regeneration of Fareham
Town Centre and without support would have a detrimental effect on
the Council’s Town Centre Vision;
ii) the Panel recognise the importance of the venue for many community
organisations, and the need for such a facility to serve the existing
and growing population in the Borough;
iii) the risk profile for the project has changed but on balance are minded to
support the project at this time; and
Page 106

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

29 September 2021

iv) Officers and Members of the Ferneham Hall Working Group be thanked
for their work to move the project forward, particularly during these
challenging times.
The remainder of the meeting continued in public session.
RESOLVED that the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel:a) note the contents of the Executive report at Appendix 1; and
b) pass the following comments to the Executive for consideration at their
meeting on the 30 September 2021. Members of the Leisure and
Community Scrutiny Panel agreed that: i) the Fareham Live project is a key part of the regeneration of
Fareham Town Centre and without support would have a
detrimental effect on the Council’s Town Centre Vision;
ii) the Panel recognise the importance of the venue for many
community organisations, and the need for such a facility to
serve the existing and growing population in the Borough;
iii) the risk profile for the project has changed but on balance
are minded to support the project at this time; and
iv) Officers and Members of the Ferneham Hall Working Group
be thanked for their work to move the project forward,
particularly during these challenging times.
7.

SCOPING REPORT - Y-SERVICES
The Panel considered a draft Y-Services scoping report which was tabled at
the meeting. The purpose of the report is to outline the objectives that
Members of the Panel had suggested could form a written update from YServices at a future meeting of the Panel.
Members agreed on the content of the report and asked that an additional
bullet point be added in order for Y-Services to provide and update on their
services during the Covid pandemic.

8.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
(1)

Community Funding Application - Abshot Community Association

No comments were received.
(2)

Community Fund Application - 3rd Portchester Scouts

No comments were received.
(3)

Community Fund Application - Locks Heath Colts Cricket Club

No comments were received.

Page 107

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

9.

29 September 2021

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
The Chairman asked Members of the Panel to consider the Scrutiny Priorities
for the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel.
Members enquired as to whether an item could be brought to the Panel on the
budget and funding for Leisure and Community. The Director of Leisure and
Community advised that this information would be brought to the Panel as part
of the annual portfolio review, that is usually brought to the Panel at the first
meeting of the municipal year.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.20 pm).

Page 108

Agenda Item 11(6)

Minutes of the
Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 5 October 2021

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs C L A Hockley (Chairman)

Councillor

Mrs L E Clubley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs S M Bayford, J M Englefield, M J Ford, JP, Mrs K K Trott
and Miss T G Harper

Also
Present:

Mrs S M Walker (Items 5 & 6)

Page 109

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

1.

5 October 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies of absence were received at the meeting.

2.

MINUTES
A copy of the Minutes of the 29 September 2021 Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel were tabled at the meeting and are appended to these Minutes.
RESOLOVED that the Minutes of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
meeting held on the 29 September 2021 be signed and confirmed as a correct
record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no announcements made by the Chairman.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations made at the meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Panel received a written deputation from Mrs L Driver requesting that
improvements be made to the Crossfell Walk play area in Fareham.
Members and officers discussed the matters raised in the deputation at length
and it was agreed that Crossfell Walk Play Area would be added to the list of
the Council’s play areas that required improvements.
Officers explained that Crossfell Walk Play Area was comparable to many
other play areas in the Borough, and it provided a good mix of equipment for
children of different ages, but there are other sites that also need work and
that they would take priority.
At the invitation of the Chairman the Executive Member for Leisure and
Community addressed the Panel to add that funding is and will continue to be
a challenge. The Council, alongside local communities, will need to find
alternative ways to fund this type of improvement going forward.
Members of the Panel thanked the Deputee for bringing this matter to their
attention.

6.

CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU
The Panel received a presentation from Biddy Mayo, Chief Officer and Colleen
Sykes, Trustee from Fareham Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB).
The presentation provided an opportunity for the Panel to scrutinise the
service that Citizen’s Advice Fareham provides to the residents of the Borough
Page 110

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

5 October 2021

of Fareham, as per the objectives set out in the scoping report agreed at the
10 March 2021 Panel meeting.
Following the presentation Members of the Panel, along with the Executive
Member for Leisure and Community, discussed at length several elements of
the CAB presentation.
The key points of discussion were the high number of recurring clients, the use
of office space and the need for the CAB to consider different ways of working
to ensure they are assisting their clients to become as self-sufficient as
possible.
Members agreed that the CAB provide a valuable service to Fareham
residents but expressed the importance of ensuring that the Council is getting
value for money for all its residents who use the CAB service.
The Director of Leisure and Community explained that she, along with the
Executive Member for Leisure and Community attend regular monitoring
meetings with the CAB and the Panels comments would be fed back to the
Trustees.
RESOLVED that the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel: a) note the contents of the presentation; and
b) ask that their comments be fed back to the CAB Trustees by the
Director of Leisure and Community at their next monitoring meeting.
7.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
The Panel were asked to consider an item of Executive Business that had
been tabled at the meeting – Tabled item 7 – Restarting the remodelling of the
Fareham Live Project.
No comments were received.

8.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
The Chairman asked Members to consider the Scrutiny Priorities for Leisure
and Community over the coming week and advised that as this was previously
considered at length at the previous meeting this item would be discussed in
more detail at the next meeting.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.43 pm).

Page 111

Agenda Item 11(7)

Minutes of the
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 6 October 2021

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs S M Bayford (Chairman)

Councillor

N J Walker (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Miss J Bull, M R Daniells, Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley
and G Kelly

Also
Present:

Page 113

Policy
and
Scrutiny Panel

1.

Resources

6 October 2021

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies of absence.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel held
on 28 June 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTION
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCE STRATEGY
The Council considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer on the
medium term finance strategy.
The Finance Manager addressed the Panel to provide them with a verbal
update to the published recommendation from “that any proposals or
comments of the Panel be referred to the Executive at its meeting on 11
October 2021” to “that any proposals or comments of the Panel be referred to
a future meeting of the Executive”.
Members enquired as to how the Council is approaching the possible loss of
income from its property portfolio going forward. The Finance Manager
explained that the Council is working closely with its tenants to understand
individual pressures and needs and has made changes to payment
arrangements to help better suit these businesses whilst they recover from the
impact of the Pandemic.
Members also questioned what would happen to current posts that have been
created from government funding as a result of the Pandemic when the
funding runs out. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer explained that while the
posts are fixed term, Officers do submit funding bids when Government
funding is made available, in order to try to secure these posts in the future.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends that the Executive approves the
Medium Term Finance Strategy when it is considered at a future meeting of
the Executive.

Page 114

Policy
and
Scrutiny Panel

7.

Resources

6 October 2021

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CORPORATE STRATEGY
The Panel considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer on the
annual review of the Corporate Strategy and Local Service Agreements 202021.
Councillor Mrs Hockley commented on how well presented this document and
easy to read and understand. She also enquired as to whether the Greening
Campaign for Titchfield should be in this document. The Policy, Research and
Engagement Manager confirmed that this is scheduled to be in the 2021-22
update.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends that the Executive endorses the
Annual Review of the Corporate Strategy 2017-2023 and Local Service
Agreements 2020-2021 when it considers this report at its meeting on 1
November 2021.

8.

THE COUNCIL'S APPROACH TO THE PANDEMIC
The Panel considered a report by the Chief Executive Officer on a review of
the Council’s approach to the Pandemic.
The Chief Executive Officer referred members to page 76 of the agenda pack
and to recommendation C which is to be amended to read, “The proposal that
future deputations can also be made in writing, or by a video or audio clip, be
approved, subject to the separate deputation scheme for the Planning
Committee being kept under review.”
The Panel requested that their praise for the entire workforce for their
continued commitment to work throughout the Pandemic over past 18 months,
which has put significant pressure on all Council services, be passed on to all
staff. The Panel recognises that the Council’s success in continuing all
services throughout the Pandemic was due to all employees rising to the
challenges that were brought about as a result of the Pandemic.
The Chief Executive Officer confirmed that he would pass on the Panel’s
comments to the workforce and agreed with the Panel’s comments. He also
explained that part of the success for the Council to be able to adapt so
quickly to the Pandemic was due to having a majority directly employed
workforce, which allowed the Council to easily redeploy staff to other services
areas where needed to deal with pressure demands on those more
significantly impacted service areas.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 11
October 2021:
(i) That the proposed amendment to recommendation (c) of the report be
approved; and
(ii) The Panel’s comments above are noted.

Page 115

Policy
and
Scrutiny Panel

9.

Resources

6 October 2021

PROPOSAL FOR A NEW WAY OF WORKING
The Panel considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer on a
proposal for a new way of working.
The Chairman asked why recruitment was becoming more difficult, and
whether this was specific to the Council, or whether other authorities were also
experiencing the same issues. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer confirmed
that this was an issue for Local Authorities in general and difficulties were
being experienced across a broader range of roles, partly due to ongoing
competition from the private sector. This is one of the reasons why the Council
was taking steps to ensure it was an attractive employer.
Councillor Walker expressed concern that employing staff from outside of the
local area could lead to staff making decisions with limited knowledge of the
Council and needs of the community. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer
confirmed this would be unlikely, especially for posts where knowledge of the
borough was a necessity to carry out a role effectively, as well as recognising
the Council’s expectation that all staff will continue to attend the civic offices
for work regularly.

A question was asked of the Chief Executive Officer if this would require a
change of contract for all current staff. He confirmed that this would not be
necessary as it is a voluntary offer to staff, and they recognise that not all staff
will want to adopt this new way of working. He also explained to the Panel that
this would not apply to the entire workforce as there is a large proportion of
staff whose job could not be undertaken from home, for example grounds
maintenance staff and waste and recycling collection staff.
Councillor Bull enquired as to whether this is any thought to adopting a more
flexible working hours to better suit the public needs with more staff being
available at different times whilst working from home. The Deputy Chief
Executive Officer confirmed this is something that there is an opportunity for,
and that engagement with the public to understand their preferred way of
dealing with the Council would need to be undertaken first.
Councillor Daniells expressed his support for the proposals and noted that
many places of work are currently looking into the feasibility of being able to
offer this to employees. He acknowledged that the Council has taken the
welfare of its employee into consideration when working at home, but
commented that employee’s can also feel isolated when working in an empty
office and that this needs to considered as well. He also stressed the
importance of maintaining a team focus and suggested that team days could
be arranged to ensure that staff maintain the team ethos.
Councillor Kelly acknowledged that life is dynamic and ever evolving and that
the Council is not immune to that. He enquired as to whether the Council
Offices were still fit for purpose. The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that
the viability of the offices has been considered and it was determined that for
now the building will remain the central hub for the Council’s operations.. He
explained that this was reflected in the feedback from the staff consultation
exercise. He also stressed that it is important to retain a centre point for local
Page 116

Policy
and
Scrutiny Panel

Resources

6 October 2021

democracy, and recognised the role the Council has to play as a large
employer in the town centre, for the local economy.
RESOLVED that the Panel recommends to the Executive at its meeting on 11
October 2021: (i) That it notes the Panel’s comments above; and
(ii) Approves the recommendations as set out in the report.
10.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
The Panel considered the Executive items of business which fall under the
remit of the Policy and Resources Portfolio, including Executive Member
decisions and Officer delegated decisions, that have taken place since the last
meeting of the Panel on 28 June 2021.
The Panel considered the decisions at items 10(1) to 10(4) of the agenda.
RESOLVED that the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel considered the
following items of Executive Business.
(1)

Capital & Treasury Management Outturn 2020/21

No comments were received.
(2)

Complaints Policy and Unreasonable Complaint Behaviour Policy
Updates

No comments were received.
(3)

General Fund & Housing Revenue Account Outturn 2020/21

No comments were received.
(4)

Welborne Garden Village Housing Infrastructure Grant

No comments were received.
11.

SCRUTINY PRIORITIES
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer addressed the Panel on this item and
reminded members of the items that they have already agreed upon for the
next few meetings and provided them with an opportunity to put forward any
further suggestions.
Councillor Mrs Hockley requested that an update be provided in a years’ time
on both the New Ways of Working report and the Review of the Council’s
approach to the Pandemic.
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer confirmed that these would be included on
the plan.
Page 117

Policy
and
Scrutiny Panel

Resources

6 October 2021

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.37 pm).

Page 118

